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Abstract 

The Scope of Our Proposal is Preparing Three years Financial Ratio Analysis of APC Paints 

Company,, After the Siege that was Implemented on Gaza Strip During the years 2010 – 2012 , and 

the Enhancements that appeared in the internal and external effectiveness of the Company’s 

departments .   

A sustainable business and mission requires effective planning and financial management. Ratio 

analysis is a useful management tool that will improve our understanding of financial results and 

trends over time, and provide key indicators of organizational performance. Managers will use ratio 

analysis to pinpoint strengths and weaknesses from which strategies and initiatives can be formed. 

Funders may use ratio analysis to measure your results against other organizations or make 

judgments concerning management effectiveness and mission impact. 

The objective of ratio analysis is to judge the earning capacity, financial soundness and operating 

efficiency of a business organization. The use of ratio in accounting and financial management 

analysis helps the management to know the profitability, financial position and operating efficiency 

of an enterprise. 

The expected results from our proposal is to find the effect of the Israeli occupation on Gaza strip 

on the Financial Ratios that were Implemented in APC Paints Company in the Comparison between 

(2010-2012) Results ,, To find out whether The affair of the Stoppage of importing raw materials 

for Construction facilities has Improved or not.    

(Cascarino& Van Esch , 2005,p.3-4). 
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Introduction 

The Basics 

If you can read a nutrition label or a baseball box score, you can learn to read basic financial 

statements. If you can follow a recipe or apply for a loan, you can learn basic accounting. The 

basics aren’t difficult and they aren’t rocket science.  

We all remember Cuba Gooding Jr.’s immortal line from the movie Jerry Maguire, “Show me the 

money!” Well, that’s what financial statements do. They show you the money. They show you 

where a company’s money came from, where it went, and where it is now.  

There are four main financial statements. They are: (1) balance sheets; (2) income statements; 

(3) cash flow statements; and (4) statements of shareholders’ equity. Balance sheets show what a 

company owns and what it owes at a fixed point in time. Income statements show how much money 

a company made and spent over a period of time. Cash flow statements show the exchange of 

money between a company and the outside world also over a period of time. The fourth financial 

statement, called a “statement of shareholders’ equity,” shows changes in the interests of the 

company’s shareholders over time.  

Balance Sheets 

A balance sheet provides detailed information about a company’s assets, liabilities and 

shareholders’ equity.  

Assets are things that a company owns that have value. This typically means they can either be sold 

or used by the company to make products or provide services that can be sold. Assets include 

physical property, such as plants, trucks, equipment and inventory. It also includes things that can’t 

be touched but nevertheless exist and have value, such as trademarks and patents. And cash itself is 

an asset. So are investments a company makes.  

Liabilities are amounts of money that a company owes to others. This can include all kinds of 

obligations, like money borrowed from a bank to launch a new product, rent for use of a building, 

money owed to suppliers for materials, payroll a company owes to its employees, environmental 
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cleanup costs, or taxes owed to the government. Liabilities also include obligations to provide 

goods or services to customers in the future.  

Shareholders’ equity is sometimes called capital or net worth. It’s the money that would be left if a 

company sold all of its assets and paid off all of its liabilities. This leftover money belongs to the 

shareholders, or the owners, of the company. 

A company’s balance sheet is set up like the basic accounting equation shown above. On the left 

side of the balance sheet, companies list their assets. On the right side, they list their liabilities and 

shareholders’ equity. Sometimes balance sheets show assets at the top, followed by liabilities, with 

shareholders’ equity at the bottom. 

Assets are generally listed based on how quickly they will be converted into cash. Current assets are 

things a company expects to convert to cash within one year. A good example is inventory. Most 

companies expect to sell their inventory for cash within one year. Noncurrent assets are things a 

company does not expect to convert to cash within one year or that would take longer than one year 

to sell. Noncurrent assets include fixed assets. Fixed assets are those assets used to operate the 

business but that are not available for sale, such as trucks, office furniture and other property.  

Liabilities are generally listed based on their due dates. Liabilities are said to be either current or 

long-term. Current liabilities are obligations a company expects to pay off within the year. Long-

term liabilities are obligations due more than one year away.  

Shareholders’ equity is the amount owners invested in the company’s stock plus or minus the 

company’s earnings or losses since inception. Sometimes companies distribute earnings, instead of 

retaining them. These distributions are called dividends.  

A balance sheet shows a snapshot of a company’s assets, liabilities and shareholders’ equity at the 

end of the reporting period. It does not show the flows into and out of the accounts during the 

period.  
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Income Statements 

An income statement is a report that shows how much revenue a company earned over a specific 

time period (usually for a year or some portion of a year). An income statement also shows the 

costs and expenses associated with earning that revenue. The literal “bottom line” of the statement 

usually shows the company’s net earnings or losses. This tells you how much the company earned 

or lost over the period.  

Income statements also report earnings per share (or “EPS”). This calculation tells you how much 

money shareholders would receive if the company decided to distribute all of the net earnings for 

the period. (Companies almost never distribute all of their earnings. Usually they reinvest them in 

the business.)  

To understand how income statements are set up, think of them as a set of stairs. You start at the top 

with the total amount of sales made during the accounting period. Then you go down, one step at a 

time. At each step, you make a deduction for certain costs or other operating expenses associated 

with earning the revenue. At the bottom of the stairs, after deducting all of the expenses, you learn 

how much the company actually earned or lost during the accounting period. People often call this 

“the bottom line.”  

Earnings per Share or EPS 

Most income statements include a calculation of earnings per share or EPS. This calculation tells 

you how much money shareholders would receive for each share of stock they own if the company 

distributed all of its net income for the period.  

To calculate EPS, you take the total net income and divide it by the number of outstanding shares of 

the company.  

Cash Flow Statements 

Cash flow statements report a company’s inflows and outflows of cash. This is important because a 

company needs to have enough cash on hand to pay its expenses and purchase assets. While an 
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income statement can tell you whether a company made a profit, a cash flow statement can tell you 

whether the company generated cash.  

A cash flow statement shows changes over time rather than absolute dollar amounts at a point in 

time. It uses and reorders the information from a company’s balance sheet and income statement.  

The bottom line of the cash flow statement shows the net increase or decrease in cash for the period. 

Generally, cash flow statements are divided into three main parts. Each part reviews the cash flow 

from one of three types of activities: (1) operating activities; (2) investing activities; and 

(3) financing activities.  

(David O’Regan,2006,p.215). 
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Statement of the problem 

 

The use of financial ratio analysis for understanding and predicting the performance of privately 

owned business firms is gaining in importance in published research. Perhaps the major problem 

faced by researchers is the difficulty of obtaining an adequate sample of representative financial 

statements with many studies using 50 or fewer firms for analysis. However, when larger databases 

are used, it is important to know that they have problems as well and that adjustments to these 

samples must be made to permit the use of multivariate analysis techniques. 

So that our Research will Resolve these dilemmas :-  

1. Why do financial analysts engage in the analysis of a firm's statements? 

2. What are common size financial statements and how are they constructed? 

3. What is the financial ratio’s intended to measure? 

4. How the financial statement influence  making decision? 

5. How much did the Financial ratio affect the Infrastructure of the company ? 

6. Did the company’s performance improve during the mentioned years ? 

7. Will this information that have been calculated will benefit us in preparing the new year’s 

budgets? 

 

Objectives 

Main objective 

The main objective of our project is to provide the necessary information, that it would help us in 

calculating the financial ratios and determining whether it would be related for the decision making 

process, and preparing the budgets for the APC company. 

Specific objectives 

The specific objectives of the project are: 

1. To identify the meaning of each ratio and it’s interpretation.  

2. How could each ratio would be calculated, and the basic formula for each. 
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3.Did the Problems that faced the Company during the last two years had been solved. 

4. To evaluate the firm's financial performance in light of comparing between each year in the 

company. 

Significance of the project (work) 

Performance management is a key function in running a small business. Business owners often use 

a variety of management tools to gauge the effectiveness of their operations. Accounting is the 

function responsible for recording, reporting and analyzing a company financial information. 

Financial statements are usually the final output of the company’s accounting system. Owners use 

financial ratios to break down their financial statements during the performance management 

process. 

Quantitative Analysis 

Business owners can use financial ratios as a quantitative analysis tool during performance 

management. Quantitative analysis is the process of applying mathematical or statistical 

calculations to the company financial information. Quantitative analysis can provide a detailed, 

accurate picture of the company financial performance. Banks and lenders also use financial ratios 

to review a small business financial information. 

Types of Ratios 

Financial ratios include liquidity, asset turnover, financial leverage and profitability calculations. 

Liquidity ratios help business managers determine how well their business can meet short-term 

financial obligations. Asset turnover ratios provide indicators which inform managers how well the 

company uses assets to generate sales revenue. Financial leverage calculates the long-term solvency 

of the small business. Profitability ratios calculate the individual profit amounts earned from each 

type of good or service. 
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Function 

Financial ratios can provide a benchmark for a comparative analysis. Business owners use a 

comparative analysis to review their company’s financial ratio indicators against a competing 

company or the industry standard. Small businesses with financial indicators below the industry 

standard usually are not operating as efficiently as possible. Indicators higher than the industry 

standard indicate the company is operating better than other companies under current market 

conditions. 

Alternative Analysis 

Smaller or home-based businesses may not find financial ratios to be a good measuring stick for 

their company’s performance. These business models often have less financial information than is 

required to calculate financial ratios. Business owners should consider developing a performance 

management review outside of traditional financial ratios for measuring performance. Qualitative 

financial statement analysis may work better than financial ratios. Business owners use qualitative 

analysis by looking at the company’s financial statements and making personal judgments or 

inferences based on this information. 

Considerations 

Financial ratios may not provide business owners with a best picture of performance management. 

Although financial ratios can indicate strong financial performance relating to the use of assets, debt 

and equity, internal production operations may be suffering from poor management. Small business 

operations can suffer from the inefficient use of economic resources, poor individual employee 

performance and production equipment that is not working properly. These issues cannot be 

recognized when conducting a financial ratio analysis. 
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Scope and limitations of the project (work) 

The limitations of our project could be presented in the following points: 

1. If Financial Statements are not correct Financial Ratio Analysis will also be not correct.  

 

2. An enterprise may work out ratios on the basis of profit after Tax and interest while others work 

on profit before interest and Tax .So, the Ratios will also be different so cannot be compared 

 

3. Changes in price level affect the comparability of Ratios. This handicaps the utility of accounting 

ratios.  

 

4. The Financial Ratios ignores the qualitative factors and they work on the basis of quantitative 

analysis only. 

 

5. Making the research was very hard, and there is no enough time to make a good research. 

 

6. There are various types of financial ratios and also various  classifications, depending on an 

investor's perspective or areas that corporate leadership wants to review. 

 

7. The analytical skills and expertise that must be available for the analysis in preparing the 

financial ratios are not exist on us, and are not learned to for preparing this research. 

8. Access to information. Access to resources. Time management. Access to experts for editing, 

proofreading, and guidance. Support from organizations and participants. 

 

9. The Surveys that must be posted to the public and to collect the necessary information for the 

research might not be accurate for our analysis.  
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Methodology 

In our research we used the Analytical methodology due to the nature of the research, also it  must 

be evaluated concurrently with factors related to sampling procedures, statistical treatment of data, 

and risk assessment processes to ensure that the established Data Quality Objectives (DQOs) can be 

attained. Responsible parties must determine the sampling methods, analytical methods, and quality 

control measures needed to meet the closure or remedial DQOs (for screening, determination of 

nature and extent, and confirmation of remediation, as applicable). These considerations must take 

into account the uncertainty associated with generating data and with determining that statistical 

criteria have been met. After the data have been generated they must be validated for conformance 

to quality assurance/quality control criteria, and assessed in terms of applicability to the overall 

project goal. In other words, data must be assessed as to whether the DQOs have been met. 

 

we realize that our research’s topic needs a Palestinian corporation  to be a case study for this 

research, so we will apply this research on the Palestinian construction Company’s (APC Paints) 

,using its financial statements with its declarations and notes. 

 

Overview of the current state of the art 

Financial statement analysis (or financial analysis) the process of understanding the risk and 

profitability of a firm (business, sub-business or project) through analysis of reported financial 

information, by using different accounting tools and techniques. 

Financial statement analysis consists of 1) reformulating reported financial statements, 2) analysis 

and adjustments of measurement errors, and 3) financial ratio analysis on the basis of reformulated 

and adjusted financial statements. The first two steps are often dropped in practice, meaning that 

financial ratios are just calculated on the basis of the reported numbers, perhaps with some 

adjustments. Financial statement analysis is the foundation for evaluating and pricing credit risk and 

for doing fundamental company valuation 
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So our topic will contain five chapters which are as follows: 

The first Chapter: 

In which we are going to introduce you the main idea of the research and its important objectives an 

sub-objectives, and The advantages and limitations of the Project and the purpose of implementing 

the project. 

The second chapter: 

The second Chapter Introduces The Concepts of the accounting hierarchy and the Main objectives, 

Presenting the secondary and primary concepts and rules (Managerial of Finance) , Illustrating the 

main methods and ways for analyzing the financial statements including the Financial Ratios & its 

main formulas . 

The third chapter: 

In this chapter we will talk particularly about one method of many methods of analyzing the 

financial statements, taking the clearest classification for the financial ratios. With this chapter 

we’re going to Introduce his concepts in a more detailed way the financial Ratios and its 

classifications such as Profitability ratios , Debt ratios , Liquidity Ratios & activity Ratios. 

The fourth chapter: 

In this chapter we will take Palestinian Construction Companies  (APC Paints ) as a case study, and 

then introduce its financial statements by analyzing them according to the financial ratios. we shall 

also interpret each financial ratio by comparing this ratio among two years which are 2011 and 

2012. 

The fifth chapter: 

In this chapter we include the conclusion from our research, also the results and recommendations 

that have been resulted from our research and our study. 
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Related works 

1. The use of Financial Ratios for Research: Problems Associated with and 

Recommendations for Using Large Databases , by Boris Nenide School of Business 

University of Wisconsin-Madison (608) 265-5080 

.Robert W. Pricer Graham Wisconsin Distinguished Professor 

School of Business University of Wisconsin-Madison (608) 263-3464(P. 6-10):- 

 

In this paper, we demonstrate the use of actual financial data for financial ratio analysis. We 

construct a financial and industry analysis for Motorola Corporation. The objective is to show 

students exactly how to compute ratios for an actual company. This paper demonstrates the 

difficulties in applying the principles of financial ratio analysis when the data are not homogeneous 

as is the case in textbook examples. We use Motorola as an example because the firm has several 

segments, two of which account for the majority of sales and represent two industries 

(semiconductor and communications) that have different characteristics. The case illustrates the 

complexity of financial analysis.  

 

2. Top 15 financial Important Information Lincoln Indicators Pty Ltd ACN 006 715 573 (Lincoln) 

AFSL 237740.by Elio D’Amato, Chief Executive Officer of Lincoln Indicators (P50-120).. :- 

 

For ordinary investors, the task of determining the health of a listed company by looking at 

financial ratios may seem daunting. Yet, it doesn’t require special training or countless hours of 

research. Even the novice investor can make sense of a listed company’s balance sheet, profit 

Endless and cash flow statement by using financial ratios. By financial ratios we mean taking 

financial figure and looking at it relative to another financial figure. These ratios simplify the 

process of determining the health of a listed company and make reported financial information 

more meaningful and useful for investors. In this e-book we cover 15 ratios that measure a 

company’s liquidity, leverage, profitability and share price value. Understanding these ratios will 

go a long way to providing you with an idea of how a company is performing in relation to key 

measures of business success. 
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3. An example of the use of financial ratio analysis: the case of Motorola 

H. W. Collier University of Wollongong, collier@uow.edu.au 

 By T. GraiOakland University, USA S. HaslittOakland University, USA C. B. McGowan 

UniversitiKebangsaan Malaysia, cbmcgowan@nsu.edu(P.66-70)  

 

Review of published research in the field of accounting and finance reveals that the use of ratio 

Calculations with multivariate analysis for predicting the performance of business firms is common. 

However, much of this research uses large database information without determining if sample 

assumptions needed can be met for reliable conclusions to be drawn by the researchers. This paper 

presents recommended adjustment techniques for researchers using large databases for ratio 

calculation to allow for confidence that the results of analysis will be meaningful and that 

inferences may be drawn from the data. Using a sample from the Kauffman Center for 

Entrepreneurial Leadership Financial Statement Database, Balance Sheet and Income Statement 

data of 250 firms is used to illustrate and explain techniques for data error identification, handling 

the problem of denominators being negative or approaching zero when calculating ratios, and 

effective techniques for transforming the data to achieve approximation of normal distributions. 

The application of these recommendations will allow researchers to use financial statement data 

samples that will meet required characteristics for the use of valid multivariate statistical analysis. 

 

 

4. Thompson, AA, Jr., and Strickland, A.J., III. 1996. Strategic management: Concepts and cases, 

9thed. Irwin: Chicago, (p. 326-7). Copyright, Irwin (Times Mirror Higher Education Group) 

 

Some of the names, “common size ratios” and “liquidity ratios,” for example, may be unfamiliar. 

However, nothing in the following pages is actually very difficult to calculate or complicated to 

use. The payoff can be enormous. The goal of this document is to provide you with some ways to 

look at how your company is doing compared to earlier periods of time, and how its performance 

compares to other companies in your industry. Once you get comfortable with these tools you will 

be able to turn the raw numbers in your company’s financial statements into information that will 

help you to better manage your business. 

mailto:cbmcgowan@nsu.edu
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Time Table and budget 

The estimated research budget could be 100 NIS.In order to prepare the research with the periode 

corresponding to the summer vacation, the time budget for us is presented as follows:- 
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What is accounting? 
 

This is not an easy question. What do you think accounting is? The scope and definition of 

accounting changes throughout time. In general, it is argued that accounting is concerned with the 

provision of information about the position and performance of an enterprise that is useful to a 

wide range of potential users in making decisions. Historically, this information has been financial, 

but accounting is increasingly being used to address the ‘triple-bottom-line’ of social and 

environmental, as well as economic, concerns. In this unit we focus on financial uses of accounting 

but you can study social and environmental reporting later in unit 93, Auditing. Similarly, in this 

course the types of enterprises that we will focus on are businesses whose aim is to make profit or 

otherwise to increase their owners’ wealth.1 However, it is important to remember that other types 

of enterprises such as charities, other nongovernment organizations, and public sector bodies such 

as schools, universities, hospitals, and local and national government, also use accounting. You can 

also find out more about accounting for these types of enterprises in unit 93, Auditing. The 

decisions that users of accounting information make may be economic or legal in nature. Economic 

decisions are concerned with the allocation of resources, for example, whether to sell or invest in a 

business, or invest in the equipment to manufacture a new product. ‘Legal’ decisions are concerned 

with determining whether managers have made a good job of running a business on the owners’ 

behalf (stewardship), and how much managers should be paid, or they concern matters such as how 

much tax a business should pay, or whether a business has broken the terms of its 

borrowing agreements. Users of accounting information are usually thought of as individuals, but 

there is also a social role for accounting, and it can be regarded as a ‘public good’ which aims to 

improve the allocation of scarce resources for the welfare of society in general. 

(Awid,1985) 
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A brief history 
  
Accounting originally served a stewardship function, as a result of the separation of ownership and 

control of resources. First wealthy landowners, and later company shareholders, hired managers or 

‘stewards ‘to run their properties and businesses. The landowners and shareholders owned the 

resources, but the stewards and managers controlled them. As the business owners could not always 

be on hand to watch their stewards or managers perform their duties, they required the stewards to 

make regular reports on their activities, using accounting to prepare the figures. This is what we call 

financial reporting. The separation of ownership and control has grown wider and wider throughout 

the last century, as companies increased in number, and became larger and more complicated. 

 

Alongside the growth in financial reporting, has been the development of the use of accounting for 

the benefit of the business managers themselves. The practice of using accounting information as a 

direct aid to management arose later than financial reporting, but is no less important. Increasing 

business complexity and changes to the economic environment have meant that more and more 

sophisticated systems of collecting and recording information are required. In contrast to financial 

accounting, this information is used to help make decisions about the future, not just report on past 

events. Different types of information, and different tools with which to analyse it, are required. 

Finally, as accounting has been recognized as a social science, the impact of the use of accounting 

information (whether as an aid to management, or for financial reporting purposes) on the 

employees of the business has been widely explored. Managers or employees who are paid salary 

bonuses based on figures provided by accounting systems may change their actions as a result of 

the incentives (or disincentives!) this provides. 

 

(IIA,2004) 
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Towards a definition 
 

Perhaps the best way of thinking about the role and development of accounting is to consider the 

functions that accounting information performs. Not all of these functions have been expected or 

required of accounting at all times in the past, and it is likely that additional functions will be 

demanded in the future. Therefore, if accounting is defined by the functions it performs, you can see 

that this definition changes through time. The earliest roles of accounting information were to 

measure and record financial transactions and provide information for stewardship purposes. At 

present, accounting is generally viewed as serving the following functions: 

 

• Recording: accounting systems supply a means of recording data so as to enable the production of 

reports or for use in calculations. For example, for the preparation of financial statements, the 

calculation of performance indicators on which managerial bonuses are based, or for costing 

inventory. 

 

• Classification: accounting systems assist in categorizing data so as to enable the production of 

reports or for use in calculations. For example, identifying whether an item is an asset or an 

expense, or which costs should be included in inventory. 

 

• Measurement: accounting systems quantify data so as to enable the production of reports or for 

use in calculations. For example, determining how much profit a business has earned in a year, or 

the value of a piece of machinery. 

 

• Stewardship: accounting systems provide information which enables owners to determine how 

funds entrusted to managers have been used by them, and to what ends. 

• Information for decisions: accounting systems provide information which enables users to make 

decisions about the future. For example, to assist investors or managers in deciding how to allocate 

their limited resources. 

 

• Monitoring and control: accounting systems provide information which enables management to 

monitor performance, and take corrective action if necessary. Principles of accounting 14 
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• Performance evaluation and compensation: accounting systems provide information on the 

performance of different individuals and parts of the business in order to determine how much 

managers and employees should be rewarded, according to the terms of their contracts. 

• Communication: accounting systems provide a means by which information is transmitted to 

users. For example, to external users via the financial statements, or to internal users via the budget-

setting process. 

These functions can be divided into two types. The first three functions concern the production of 

accounting information. The last five functions concern the uses of the information produced. 

(IIA,2004) 

 

Financial accounting 
 

Financial accounting is concerned with the preparation of accounting information for the needs of 

users who are external to the business. Financial accounting is therefore part of financial reporting. 

Other aspects of financial reporting include the timing and manner in which the information is 

communicated. Companies publish their financial accounting information in the form of financial 

statements. Other forms of business do not need to publish their financial statements but are usually 

required to provide them to the government for taxation purposes. In general, financial accounting 

information tends to be: 

 

• prepared on a periodic basis (most companies publish their financial statements only once a year, 

in their annual report 

• based on past events and historic data 

• comprised solely of financial information 

• governed by rules and regulations. 
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Management accounting 
 

Management accounting is concerned with the preparation of accounting information for the 

needs of users who are internal to the business. In general, management accounting tends to be: 

 

• prepared frequently, as and when it is needed (most large businesses will prepare some 

information on a monthly basis and many use daily accounting information) 

• more likely to contain forward-looking information (such as forecasts and budgets) 

• more likely to incorporate non-financial information (such as quantities of products sold or 

numbers of customer complaints) 

• not regulated (managers are free to produce whatever information they need in whatever format is 

most helpful to them, subject to available data and technology).  

 

An introduction to the financial statements 
 

The purpose of the three main financial statements is to report the business’s financial performance 

and position to external users of accounting information. It is important that they only reflect the 

transactions of the business, and not the transactions of its owner(s). Until we reach Chapter 6 of 

this guide we will mainly deal with financial statements for a business with a single owner and 

which is not a company. This type of business is called a sole trader.  

Examples of sole traders are small shopkeepers, plumbers and electricians. Doctors and lawyers 

may also be sole traders but it is more usual for them to form partnerships, which have two or 

more owners. 

 

Although the business is accounted for separately to the owner’s personal belongings and 

transactions, sole traders and partnerships are not regarded as being legally separate from their 

owners. Companies are different because the business is treated as being legally separate from its 

owner(s) (who in this case are called shareholders). This means that there are more rules about the 

preparation of financial statements for companies, and there are also some items (such as ‘share 

capital’) that only appear in company financial statements. The three main financial statements are 

the balance sheet (BS), profit and loss account (P&L), and cash flow statement (CFS). 



27 
  

 The most common financial statement to be prepared is the BS. This shows the financial position 

of the business at a single point in time. However, this\ only tells part of the story about the 

business. The P&L shows the financial performance of the business over the past accounting period 

(usually one year) so that the profits of the business can be determined. Both of these financial 

statements, the BS and P&L, are prepared on the accruals basis and are closely linked to each other. 

 

The CFS is the least common financial statement and is usually only prepared by companies. 

However, there is no reason why a sole trader or a partnership could not prepare a CFS, and without 

one, it is difficult to understand the position and performance of the business in terms of the 

Availability and generation of cash. The CFS is prepared on a ‘cash basis’.(IIA,2004) 

 

Balance sheet (The statement of financial position) 
 

The BS shows: 

• The net worth of a business at a single point in time 

• The owners’ equity. 

Net worth is the difference between a business’s assets and its liabilities. 

Therefore, another name for net worth is net assets. Owners’ equity is the claim on the business by 

the owner(s). It consists of the original capital invested in the business by the owner(s), and any 

profits (or other changes in value) that the business has made in the past which have been retained, 

or reinvested, in the business. These retained profits (or other changes in value) are known as 

reserves. 

Because the BS ‘balances’, the net worth and the owners’ equity should be equal. This is known as 

the balance sheet equation: 

 

Net Worth = Owners’ Equity 

 

We can use the definitions of net worth and owners’ equity to rewrite this equation as follows: 

 

Assets – Liabilities = Capital + Reserves 
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There are many possible definitions of an asset but the usual definition is something which the 

business owns or controls and which will provide cash or other benefits in the future. Examples of 

assets are pieces of machinery, computer equipment, goods for resale (stock), cash and customers 

which owe the business money (debtors). Assets which are expected to be held for more than one 

year are called fixed assets, whereas cash or other assets which are expected to become cash within 

one year are called current assets. 

 

Liabilities are, at their simplest, amounts that a business owes. Generally, at some point in the 

future it is probable that the business will have to pay out cash or other benefits as a result of a past 

transaction or event. 

Examples of liabilities are loans from the bank, and money owed to suppliers (creditors). Similarly 

to assets, liabilities which will not be paid for at least one year are called long term, whereas those 

that will be paid in less than one year are called current. You may also find items called provisions 

in a balance sheet. These are either used to make reductions in the value of an asset, or for liabilities 

where the amount or timing of the payment is uncertain. You will see some examples of provisions 

later in the subject guide. 

 

Profit and loss account (income statement) 

 

Retained profits are part of the owners’ equity recorded in the BS. However, the BS does not tell us 

how the retained profits were earned by the business. This is the job of the P&L. The P&L shows 

the income (revenues) and expenditure of the business over an accounting period (usually one year). 

It is a record of the business transactions in the accounting period. 

 

The difference between the income and expenditure of the business is called profit. To understand 

how the business makes its profits, the income and expenditure is split into different categories and 

a number of different profit figures are reported in the P&L. 

An example of a P&L is given in Gautier and under down (2001), p.29. 
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• Gross profit is the profit that the business earns by trading. It is the difference between sales 

revenue (sometimes called turnover) and costof sales. Cost of sales is calculated as opening stock 

(at the beginning of the accounting period) plus purchases of goods for resale (or production costs if 

the business is a manufacturer), minus closing stock (at the end of the accounting period).3 

• Net profit is the profit that the business earns after adding any additional income (such as interest 

receivable) and after deducting further business expenses (such as rent, wages and salaries, or 

heating and lighting costs). 

 

 

• Retained profit for the year is the final profit figure, after deducting distributions to owners. 

Distributions to owners are called either drawingsif the business is a sole trader or partnership, or 

dividends if the business is a company. If there are no distributions to owners, then retained profit 

is equal to net profit. 

(Allegrini and D'Onza, 2003, p.195) 

 

The link between the profit and loss account and the balance sheet 

 

The final profit figure for a business, after deducting any distributions to owners, is the retained 

profit. The P&L explains how this retained profit is earned. The retained profit is then added to 

reserves in owners’ equity in the BS. Therefore, assuming there are no changes to any other 

reserves, the difference in owners’ equity (and hence net worth) from the previous BS to the current 

BS, is equal to the retained profit. So the P&L explains the change in net worth from one BS to the 

next. This works because both the P&L and the BS are prepared on the accruals basis. For the P&L, 

this means that: 

 

• income and expenditure is recorded in the period in which it is earned or incurred, 

regardless of the timing of the associated cash flows. 

So for example, sales revenue is recorded as income even when the sale has been made on credit to 

a customer, who has two months before they need to pay, and a purchase is recorded as expenditure 

even when the purchase has been made on credit from a supplier that allows a month before 

payment. 
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As well as ‘matching’ income and expenditure in this way to the period to which they relate, 

income and expenditure are also matched to each other, so that where possible expenditure is 

recognized in the same period in which it generates sales. You can see that the BS is also prepared 

on the accruals basis, because the BS contains all the ‘missing pieces’ of the puzzle at any point in 

time. When a sale has been recorded but the customer has not yet paid up, the BS contains a debtor 

(receivable). When a purchase has been recorded but the supplier has not yet been paid, the BS 

contains a creditor (payable). 

(Allegrini and D'Onza, 2003, p.210) 

 

Cash flow statement 

 

The CFS is used to demonstrate sources and applications of funds over the accounting period. It 

provides information on the liquidity of the business as it explains what has happened to the cash 

balance from one BS to the next. The final balance in the CFS is this change in cash figure. You 

have to be careful when you work this figure out, because it is possible for a business to have a 

negative cash balance. This is called an ‘overdraft’ and is a form of short-term borrowing. Bank 

overdrafts appear under current liabilities in the BS, because the bank can request the business to 

repay the amount at any time. 

 

The main types of sources and applications of cash that are reported in the CFS are described in 

Glautier and Underdown (2001) p.33, and an example is provided on p.34. 

 

Why cash is different to profit 

 

As already discussed, the P&L and BS are prepared on the accruals basis. However, the CFS is 

prepared on a cash basis. The CFS records actual cash flows into and out of the business throughout 

the accounting period. In contrast, the P&L records income and expenditure matched to the 

accounting period in which it is earned or incurred, regardless of whether or not any cash has 

actually changed hands. 
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Accounting concepts, bases and policies 

 

Accounting concepts 

 

It is a common misconception that financial statements can be considered as ‘right’, or, in other 

words, that there is only one ‘correct’ way that they should be prepared. This is especially true in 

the case of profit.  

 

However, there is no universally-accepted measure of profit (unlike, say, distance, although even 

this can be measured in different units). Because of this, 

accountants have developed certain broad assumptions on which the financial statements are 

prepared. These assumptions are known as accounting concepts.  

You should note that even these underlying assumptions are not set in stone, and different 

accounting regimes may also regard some concepts as more important than others, especially when 

they seem to conflict with each other. 

Glautier and Underdown (2001) give a detailed discussion of a comprehensive list of accounting 

concepts. 

Particular, you have already seen how important the accruals concept is, and you should make very 

sure that you understand this concept as it will be used every time you prepare a set of financial 

statements. In addition to the concepts in the textbook, the following three concepts are included for 

completeness: 

 

• Duality. There are two effects from any economic event. These are reflected in accounting using 

the system of double-entry bookkeeping. The ultimate result is the connection between the BS and 

P&L: if the business makes a profit, it increases its net worth. 

 

• Objectivity. Accounting information should be provided in a manner that is free of bias. 
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• Materiality. Significant (‘material’) items should be given more emphasis than insignificant ones. 

An item is material if its disclosure is likely to affect users’ decisions. Material items should always 

be disclosed in the financial statements; however, immaterial items may sometimes be excluded. 

Materiality is a very subjective concept as preparers have to judge what they think will be important 

to different users. What seems to be material to one user may be insignificant to another. 

 

Accounting concepts can be divided into several categories. First, there are boundary rules (entity, 

periodicity and going concern) which are used to determine what should and should not be reported 

in the financial statements.  

 

Once the boundary is set, recording rules determine how and when data should be recorded 

(money measurement, cost, realization, accruals, matching, duality and materiality). Finally, ethical 

rules have been developed to limit the room for manipulation of data to mislead users 

(prudence, consistency and objectivity). 

 

In UK accounting, the standard setting body originally stressed the importance of four key 

accounting concepts in the accounting standard SSAP 2 ‘Disclosure of Accounting Policies’. These 

concepts were: going concern, accruals (their definition of accruals also incorporated the matching 

Concept), consistency and prudence. If prudence and accruals were to conflict, prudence was 

supposed to take precedence. This standard has now been replaced with a new standard, FRS 18. 

FRS 18 stresses the importance of accruals and going concern over all. 

 

Bases and policies 

 

Accounting bases are the various possible methods of applying accounting concepts to the 

preparation of financial statements. Accounting policies are the specific methods chosen and 

applied by the business. For example, there are many different possible methods of stock 

(inventory) valuation. 

 

However, only one will be chosen. In many countries (including the UK) the accounting policies 

must be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
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Accounting standards: advantages and disadvantages 

 

Accounting standards are prepared by regulators in order to assist both preparers and users of 

financial statements. They usually set out rules, for example, over what may or may not be treated 

as an asset in the BS, or they restrict the choice of accounting policy to very few, or even just one, 

Acceptable accounting basis. Accounting standards in the UK have to be applied by companies, and 

by some other entities such as charities, where there is a public interest in the financial statements. 

However, sole traders and partnerships do not need to follow accounting standards. 

The advantages of accounting standards include: 

• Improved comparability between financial statements prepared by different businesses 

• reduced costs to users (in terms of understanding) and preparers (in terms of applying) different 

accounting policies and definitions because there are fewer choices to make. However, the 

disadvantages include: 

• Some choice is often still allowed (so it is still difficult to compare financial statements prepared 

under different accounting policy choices) 

• If there is no choice at all, some businesses may be forced to apply inappropriate accounting 

policies 

• It is usually hard to write accounting standards so that unscrupulous businesses cannot still find a 

way to manipulate or abuse the rules in order to mislead readers 

• The economic and reporting environment is changing so rapidly that new accounting standards (or 

changes to old ones) are always being required 

• New standards may be inconsistent with old standards 

• It can be so difficult to get everyone to agree on a new accounting standard that compromises have 

to be made. 
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MEANING OF FINANCE 

 

Finance may be defined as the art and science of managing money. It includes financial service and 

financial instruments. Finance also is referred as the provision of money at the time when it is 

needed. Finance function is the procurement of funds and their effective utilization in business 

concerns. The concept of finance includes capital, funds, money, and amount. But each word is 

having unique meaning. Studying and understanding the concept of finance become an important 

part of the business concern. 

(Alomari, AbdElghani, 2006, p.346) 

 

DEFINITION OF FINANCE 

According to Khan and Jain, “Finance is the art and science of managing money”. 

According to Oxford dictionary, the word ‘finance’ connotes ‘management of money’. Webster’s 

Ninth New Collegiate Dictionary defines finance as “the Science on study of the management of 

funds’ and the management of fund as the system that includes the circulation of money, the 

granting of credit, the making of investments, and the provision of banking facilities. 

 

DEFINITION OF BUSINESS FINANCE 

 

According to the Wheeler, “Business finance is that business activity which concerns with the 

acquisition and conversation of capital funds in meeting financial needs and overall objectives of a 

business enterprise”. According to the Guthumann and Dougall, “Business finance can broadly be 

defined as the activity concerned with planning, raising, controlling, administering of the funds 

used in the business”. 

In the words of Parhter and Wert, “Business finance deals primarily with raising, 

administering and disbursing funds by privately owned business units operating in nonfinancial 

fields of industry”. 
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TYPES OF FINANCE 

 

Finance is one of the important and integral part of business concerns, hence, it plays a major role 

in every part of the business activities. It is used in all the area of the activities under the different 

names. 

Finance can be classified into two major parts: 

 

(Schall, 1986) 

Private Finance, which includes the Individual, Firms, Business or Corporate Financial activities to 

meet the requirements. Public Finance which concerns with revenue and disbursement of 

Government such as Central Government, State Government and Semi-Government Financial 

matters. 

 

OBJECTIVES OF FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

 

Effective procurement and efficient use of finance lead to proper utilization of the finance 

by the business concern. It is the essential part of the financial manager. Hence, the financial 

manager must determine the basic objectives of the financial management. Objectives of Financial 

Management may be broadly divided into two parts such as: 

1. Profit maximization 

2. Wealth maximization. 
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 (Hermanson and Rittenberg ,2003 ,P 59) 

 

Profit Maximization 

Main aim of any kind of economic activity is earning profit. A business concern is also functioning 

mainly for the purpose of earning profit. Profit is the measuring techniques to understand the 

business efficiency of the concern. Profit maximization is also the traditional and narrow approach, 

which aims at, maximizes the profit of the concern. Profit maximization consists of the following 

important features. 

 

1. Profit maximization is also called as cashing per share maximization. It leads to maximize the 

business operation for profit maximization. 

2. Ultimate aim of the business concern is earning profit, hence, it considers all the possible ways to 

increase the profitability of the concern. 

3. Profit is the parameter of measuring the efficiency of the business concern. So it shows the entire 

position of the business concern. 

4. Profit maximization objectives help to reduce the risk of the business. 

Wealth Maximization 

Wealth maximization is one of the modern approaches, which involves latest innovations and 

improvements in the field of the business concern. The term wealth means shareholder wealth or 

the wealth of the persons those who are involved in the business concern. Wealth maximization is 

also known as value maximization or net present worth maximization. This objective is an 

universally accepted concept in the field of business. 
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APPROACHES TO FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

Financial management approach measures the scope of the financial management in various fields, 

which include the essential part of the finance. Financial management is not a revolutionary concept 

but an evolutionary. The definition and scope of financial management has been changed from one 

period to another period and applied various innovations. Theoretical points of view, financial 

management approach may be broadly divided into two major parts. 

 

FUNCTIONS OF FINANCE MANAGER 

Finance function is one of the major parts of business organization, which involves the permanent, 

and continuous process of the business concern. Finance is one of the interrelated functions which 

deal with personal function, marketing function, production function and research and development 

activities of the business concern. At present, every business concern concentrates more on the field 

of finance because, it is a very emerging part which reflects the entire operational and profit ability 

position of the concern. Deciding the proper financial function is the essential and ultimate goal of 

the business organization. 

 

Finance manager is one of the important role players in the field of finance function. He must have 

entire knowledge in the area of accounting, finance, economics and management. His position is 

highly critical and analytical to solve various problems related to finance. A person who deals 

finance related activities may be called finance manager. Finance manager performs the following 

major functions: 

1. Forecasting Financial Requirements 

It is the primary function of the Finance Manager. He is responsible to estimate the financial 

requirement of the business concern. He should estimate, how much finances required to acquire 

fixed assets and forecast the amount needed to meet the working capital requirements in future. 

2. Acquiring Necessary Capital 

After deciding the financial requirement, the finance manager should concentrate how the finance is 

mobilized and where it will be available. It is also highly critical in nature. 

(Alomari, AbdElghani, 2006, p.348) 
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3. Investment Decision 

The finance manager must carefully select best investment alternatives and consider the reasonable 

and stable return from the investment. He must be well versed in the field of capital budgeting 

techniques to determine the effective utilization of investment. The finance manager must 

concentrate to principles of safety, liquidity and profitability while investing capital. 

4. Cash Management 

Present day’s cash management plays a major role in the area of finance because proper cash 

management is not only essential for effective utilization of cash but it also helps to meet the short-

term liquidity position of the concern. 

5. Interrelation with Other Departments 

Finance manager deals with various functional departments such as marketing, production, 

personal, system, research, development, etc. Finance manager should have sound knowledge not 

only in finance related area but also well versed in other areas. He must maintain a good 

relationship with all the functional departments of the business organization. 

 

IMPORTANCE OF FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

Finance is the lifeblood of business organization. It needs to meet the requirement of the business 

concern. Each and every business concern must maintain adequate amount of finance for their 

smooth running of the business concern and also maintain the business carefully to achieve the goal 

of the business concern. The business goal can be achieved only with the help of effective 

management of finance. We can’t neglect the importance of finance at any time at and at any 

situation. Some of the importance of the financial management is as follows:\ 

Financial Planning 

Financial management helps to determine the financial requirement of the business concern and 

leads to take financial planning of the concern. Financial planning is an important part of the 

business concern, which helps to promotion of an enterprise. 

Acquisition of Funds 

Financial management involves the acquisition of required finance to the business concern. 

Acquiring needed funds play a major part of the financial management, which involve possible 

source of finance at minimum cost. 
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Proper Use of Funds 

Proper use and allocation of funds leads to improve the operational efficiency of the business 

concern. When the finance manager uses the funds properly, they can reduce the cost of capital and 

increase the value of the firm. 

 

Financial Decision 

Financial management helps to take sound financial decision in the business concern. 

Financial decision will affect the entire business operation of the concern. Because there is a direct 

relationship with various department functions such as marketing, production personnel, etc. 

 

Improve Profitability 

Profitability of the concern purely depends on the effectiveness and proper utilization of funds by 

the business concern. Financial management helps to improve the profitability position of the 

concern with the help of strong financial control devices such as budgetary control, ratio analysis 

and cost volume profit analysis. 

 

Increase the Value of the Firm 

Financial management is very important in the field of increasing the wealth of the investors and 

the business concern. Ultimate aim of any business concern will achieve the maximum profit and 

higher profitability leads to maximize the wealth of the investors as well as the nation. 

 

Promoting Savings 

Savings are possible only when the business concern earns higher profitability and maximizing 

wealth. Effective financial management helps to promoting and mobilizing individual and corporate 

savings. 

 

Nowadays financial management is also popularly known as business finance or corporate finances. 

The business concern or corporate sectors cannot function without the importance of the financial 

management. 

(Ibrahim , 1998, p.102) 
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TECHNIQUES OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT ANALYSIS 

Financial statement analysis is interpreted mainly to determine the financial and operational 

performance of the business concern. A number of methods or techniques are used to analyze the 

financial statement of the business concern. The following are the common methods or techniques, 

which are widely used by the business concern. 

 

1. Comparative Statement Analysis 

A. Comparative Income Statement Analysis 

B. Comparative Position Statement Analysis 

2. Trend Analysis 

3. Common Size Analysis 

4. Fund Flow Statement 

5. Cash Flow Statement 

6. Ratio Analysis 

( Harrington, 199, P.55) 

 

Comparative Statement Analysis 

Comparative statement analysis is an analysis of financial statement at different period of time. This 

statement helps to understand the comparative position of financial and operational performance at 

different period of time. 

Comparative financial statements again classified into two major parts such as 

Comparative balance sheet analysis and comparative profit and loss account analysis. 

Trend Analysis 

The financial statements may be analyzed by computing trends of series of information. It may be 

upward or downward directions which involve the percentage relationship of each and every item 

of the statement with the common value of 100%. Trend analysis helps to understand the trend 

relationship with various items, which appear in the financial statements. These percentages may 

also be taken as index number showing relative changes in the financial information resulting with 

the various period of time. In this analysis, only major items are considered for calculating the trend 

percentage. 
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SOURCES OF FINANCE 

Sources of finance mean the ways for mobilizing various terms of finance to the industrial concern. 

Sources of finance state that, how the companies are mobilizing finance for their requirements. The 

companies belong to the existing or the new which need sum amount of finance to meet the long-

term and short-term requirements such as purchasing of fixed assets, construction of office 

building, purchase of raw materials and day-to-day expenses. 

 

Sources of finance may be classified under various categories according to the following important 

heads: 

 

1. Based on the Period 

Sources of Finance may be classified under various categories based on the period. 

 

Long-term sources: Finance may be mobilized by long-term or short-term. When the finance 

mobilized with large amount and the repayable over the period will be more than five years, it may 

be considered as long-term sources. Share capital, issue of debenture, long-term loans from 

financial institutions and commercial banks come under this kind of source of finance. Long-term 

source of finance needs to meet the capital expenditure of the firms such as purchase of fixed assets, 

land and buildings, etc. 

Long-term sources of finance include: 

● Equity Shares 

● Preference Shares 

● Debenture 

● Long-term Loans 

● Fixed Deposits 

 

Short-term sources: Apart from the long-term source of finance, firms can generate finance with 

the help of short-term sources like loans and advances from commercial banks, moneylenders, etc. 

Short-term source of finance needs to meet the operational expenditure of the business concern. 
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Short-term source of finance include: 

● Bank Credit 

● Customer Advances 

● Trade Credit 

● Factoring 

● Public Deposits 

● Money Market Instruments 

 

2. Based on Ownership 

Sources of Finance may be classified under various categories based on the period: 

An ownership source of finance include 

● Shares capital, earnings 

● Retained earnings 

● Surplus and Profits 

Borrowed capital include 

● Debenture 

● Bonds 

● Public deposits 

● Loans from Bank and Financial Institutions. 

 

3. Based on Sources of Generation 

Sources of Finance may be classified into various categories based on the period. 

Internal source of finance includes 

● Retained earnings 

● Depreciation funds 

● Surplus 

External sources of finance may be include 

● Share capital 

● Debenture 

● Public deposits 

● Loans from Banks and Financial institutions 
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4. Based in Mode of Finance 

Security finance may be include 

● Shares capital 

● Debenture 

Retained earnings may include 

● Retained earnings 

● Depreciation funds 

Loan finance may include 

● Long-term loans from Financial Institutions 

● Short-term loans from Commercial banks. 

( Harrington, 199, P.60) 

The above classifications are based on the nature and how the finance is mobilized from various 

sources. But the above sources of finance can be divided into three major classifications: 

● Security Finance 

● Internal Finance 

● Loans Finance 

EQUITY SHARES 

 

Equity Shares also known as ordinary shares, which means, other than preference shares. Equity 

shareholders are the real owners of the company. They have a control over the management of the 

company. Equity shareholders are eligible to get dividend if the company earns profit. Equity share 

capital cannot be redeemed during the lifetime of the company. The liability of the equity 

shareholders is the value of unpaid value of shares. 

Features of Equity Shares 

Equity shares consist of the following important features: 

1. Maturity of the shares: Equity shares have permanent nature of capital, whichhas no maturity 

period. It cannot be redeemed during the lifetime of the company. Sources of Financing  

2. Residual claim on income: Equity shareholders have the right to get income left after paying 

fixed rate of dividend to preference shareholder. The earnings or the income available to the 

shareholders is equal to the profit after tax minus preference dividend. 
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3. Residual claims on assets: If the company wound up, the ordinary or equity shareholders have 

the right to get the claims on assets. These rights are only available to the equity shareholders. 

 

4. Right to control: Equity shareholders are the real owners of the company. Hence, they have 

power to control the management of the company and they have power to take any decision 

regarding the business operation. 

 

5. Voting rights: Equity shareholders have voting rights in the meeting of the company with the 

help of voting right power; they can change or remove any decision of the business concern. Equity 

shareholders only have voting rights in the company meeting and also they can nominate proxy to 

participate and vote in the meeting instead of the shareholder. 

 

6. Pre-emptive right: Equity shareholder pre-emptive rights. The pre-emptive right is the legal 

right of the existing shareholders. It is attested by the company in the first opportunity to purchase 

additional equity shares in proportion to their current holding capacity. 

 

7. Limited liability: Equity shareholders are having only limited liability to the value of shares they 

have purchased. If the shareholders are having fully paid up shares, they have no liability. 

Finance is the lifeblood of business concern, because it is interlinked with all activities performed 

by the business concern. In a human body, if blood circulation is not proper, body function will 

stop. Similarly, if the finance not being properly arranged, the business system will stop.  

 

Arrangement of the required finance to each department of business concern is highly a complex 

one and it needs careful decision. Quantum of finance may be depending upon the nature and 

situation of the business concern. 

( Pickett, et. Al, 2005,p.3 – 150) 
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Chapter 3 

Financial Ratios 
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Financial Ratio Analysis   

Ratio analysis is a process of determining and interpreting relationships between the items of 

financial statements to provide a meaningful understanding of the performance and financial 

position of an enterprise. Ratio analysis is an accounting tool to present accounting variables in a 

simple, concise, intelligible and understandable form.  

As per Myers “Ratio analysis is a study of relationship among various financial factors in a 

business”  

(Sabban,1997:16). 

 

Objectives of Financial Ratio Analysis  

The objective of ratio analysis is to judge the earning capacity, financial soundness and operating 

efficiency of a business organization. The use of ratio in accounting and financial management 

analysis helps the management to know the profitability, financial position and operating efficiency 

of an enterprise.  

 

Advantages of Ratio Analysis  

The advantages derived by an enterprise by the use of accounting ratios are:  

1) Useful in analysis of financial statements:  

Bankers, investors, creditors, etc analysis balance sheets and profit and loss accounts by 

means of ratios.  

 

2) Useful in simplifying accounting figures:  

 

Accounting ratio simplifies summarizes and systematizes a long array of accounting figures 

to make them understandable. In the words of Biramn and Dribin,  

“ Financial ratios are useful because they summarize briefly the results of detailed and 

complicated computation”  
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3) Useful in judging the operating efficiency of business:  

Accounting Ratio are also useful for diagnosis of the financial health of the enterprise. This 

is done by evaluating liquidity, solvency, profitability etc. Such a evaluation enables 

management to access financial requirements and the capabilities of various business units.  

4) Useful for forecasting:  

Helpful in business planning, forecasting. What should be the course of action in the 

immediate future is decided on the basis of trend ratios, i.e., ratio calculated for number of 

years.  

5) Useful in locating the weak spots:  

Locating the weak spots in the business even though the overall performance may quite 

good. Management cab then pay attention to the weakness and take remedial action. For 

example if the firm finds that the increase in distribution expense is more than proportionate 

to the results achieved, these can be examined in detail and depth to remove any wastage 

that may be there.  

 

6) Useful in Inter-firm and Intra-firm comparison:  

A firm would like to compare its performance with that of other firms and of industry in 

general. The comparison is called inter-firm comparison. If the performance of different 

units belonging to the same firm is to be compared, it is called intra-firm comparison. Such 

comparison is almost impossible without accounting ratios. Even the progress of a  

 

firm from year to year cannot be measured without the help of financial ratios. The 

accounting language simplified through ratios are the best tool to compare the firms and 

divisions of the firm.  

 

(Sabban,1997:25). 
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Using Financial Ratios 

The information contained in the four basic financial statements is of major significance to a variety 

of interested parties who regularly need to have relative measures of the company’s performance. 

Relative is the key word here, because the analysis of financial statements is based on the use of 

ratios or relative values. Ratio analysis involves methods of calculating and interpreting 

financialratios to analyze and monitor the firm’s performance. The basic inputs to ratio analysis are 

the firm’s income statement and balance sheet.  

Financial Ratios 

While an income statement and balance sheet are extremely important, they are only the starting 

point in analyzing a firm’s financial position. Most catfish firms can benefit from the use of 

financial ratios. These ratios can help detect problems before they get out of hand. Financial ratios 

basically put the numbers from an income statement and balance sheet into the proper perspective 

for analysis. Financial ratios allow catfish employee’s to do two kinds of analysis. First, financial 

ratios allow Workers to compare their firm to other similar firms. The ratio calculation makes it 

possible to compare firms that are not exactly the same. Thus, a 400- acre catfish firm can be 

compared with an 800-acre firm. Comparing a catfish firm with a dairy firm is even possible, 

although as the differences increase, the comparisons become less valid. For example, a ratio 

comparison between a 400-acre and a 600-acre catfish firm is better than comparing a catfish firm 

to a dairy firm but not as good as a comparison between 

a 400-acre and a 450-acre catfish firm. In addition, ratios allow a catfish firm to gauge its progress 

over time. A time comparison can be done without ratios, but ratios make it easy to adjust for size 

and other changes that may occur over time. 

 

There are 16 firm financial ratios recommended by the Firm Financial Standards Counsel. These 

ratios cover the areas of liquidity, solvency, profitability, repayment capacity, and financial 

efficiency. Some ratios require only the income statement or only the 

Balance sheet and others need both statements. For the ratios using both the income statement and 

balance sheet, the beginning and ending balance sheet numbers should be averaged. This is because 

the income statement covers an entire year and the balance sheet is a single point measure. 

Averaging beginning and ending balance sheets better approximates the average year condition for 

these ratios. 

 

Liquidity—there are two measures for liquidity: thecurrent ratio and the working capital ratio. Both 

of these ratios use numbers from the balance sheet. The 
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Liquidity ratios give some idea of whether a catfish farm has adequate cash to meet short-term (less 

than 1 year) obligations. 

 

Solvency—There are three measures for solvency: debt-to-asset ratio, equity-to-asset ratio, and 

debt-to equityratio. These ratios all come from the balance sheet. In fact, the ratios are all 

mathematically related. Knowing one ratio and using the balance sheet equation of Assets = 

Liabilities + Equity allows the other two ratios to be calculated. These three ratios tell who actually 

owns a catfish farmer’s farm. The debt-to-asset ratio shows the percentage of lender capital in the 

business. The equity-to-asset ratio shows the percentage of the catfish farmer’s own capital 

in the business. 

 

Profitability—there are four ratios that show profitability: return on assets (ROA), return on equity 

(ROE), operating profit margin, and net farm income (NFI). The ROA and ROE need numbers 

from both the income statement and the balance sheet. The other two ratios use numbers only from 

the income statement. In addition, these ratios (except NFI) need an estimate for the value of 

operator and unpaid labor. ROA shows the profitability of all the farm assets, while ROE shows the 

profitability of only farm equity. ROE should be greater than ROA. If not, then the debt capital 

employed by the farm is earning a return less than the cost to use it. A case of ROA > ROE could 

occur every now and then, but it should not be a regular pattern in a viable catfish operation. 

Normally, a farm’s ROA and ROE numbers are less than other businesses outside of farming. This 

occurs because land appreciation is not included in the calculation, and most farms have a large 

percentage of land in their capital base 

 

Repayment capacity—Repayment capacity has two ratios that use numbers from the income 

statement, balance sheet, and other sources. Because these two require more detailed data, they are 

a little more difficult to calculate. 

 

 

Financial efficiency—Financial efficiency consists of five ratios mostly drawn from the income 

statement. These ratios—operating expense ratio, depreciation expense ratio, interest expense ratio, 

and net income from operations ratio—tell where income was used onthe farm. These four ratios 
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must add up to 100 percent because they are the four segments of farm-generated revenue. The first 

three are the expenses that revenue must cover, and the last (net income from operations ratio) is net 

to the farm after expenses are paid. The final ratio is the asset turnover ratio, which 

tells something about how assets are being used on the farm. When this ratio is multiplied by the 

operating profit margin, the answer is the rate of return on assets (ROA). In effect, profitability is 

determined from the margin on products sold and the efficient use of farm assets. For example, a 

grocery store tends to have low margins, but they have large sales relative to their asset base (good 

asset turnover ratio). Luxury car dealerships, by contrast, have good margins but low turnover. 

 

Interested Parties 

Ratio analysis of a firm’s financial statements is of interest to shareholders, creditors, and the firm’s 

own management. Both current and prospective shareholders are interested in the firm’s current and 

future level of risk and return, which directly affect share price. The firm’s creditors are interested 

primarily in the short-term liquidity of the company and its ability to make interest and principal 

payments. A secondary concern of creditors is the firm’s profitability; they want assurance that the 

business is healthy. Management, like stockholders, is concerned with all aspects of the firm’s 

financial situation, and it attempts to produce financial ratios that will be considered favorable by 

both owners and creditors. In addition, management uses ratios to monitor the firm’s performance 

from period to period. 
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Types of Ratio Comparisons 

Ratio analysis is not merely the calculation of a given ratio. More important is the interpretation of 

the ratio value. A meaningful basis for comparison is needed to answer such questions as “Is it too 

high or too low?” and “Is it good or bad?” Two types of ratio comparisons can be made: cross-

sectional and time-series. 

(A.I.C.P.A, 1961:P.27) 

Cross-Sectional Analysis 

Cross-sectional analysis involves the comparison of different firms’ financial ratios at the same 

point in time. Analysts are often interested in how well a firm has performed in relation to other 

firms in its industry. Frequently, a firm will compare its ratio values to those of a key competitor or 

group of competitors that it wishes to emulate. This type of cross-sectional analysis, called 

benchmarking, has become very popular. 

Comparison to industry averages is also popular. These figures can be  found in the Almanac of 

Business and Industrial Financial Ratios, Dun & Bradstreet’s Industry Norms and Key Business 

Ratios, RMA Annual Statement Studies, Value Line, and industry sources.  

 Many people mistakenly believe that as long as the firm being analyzed has a value “better than” 

the industry average, it can be viewed favorably. However, this “better than average” viewpoint can 

be misleading. Quite often a ratio value that is far better than the norm can indicate problems that, 

on more careful analysis, may be more severe than had the ratio been worse than the industry 

average. It is therefore important to investigate significant deviations to either side of the industry 

standard. 

Time-Series Analysis 

Time-series analysis evaluates performance over time. Comparison of current to past performance, 

using ratios, enables analysts to assess the firm’s progress. Developing trends can be seen by using 

multiyear comparisons. Any significant year-to-year changes may be symptomatic of a major 

problem. 
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Combined Analysis 

The most informative approach to ratio analysis combines cross-sectional and time-series analyses. 

A combined view makes it possible to assess the trend in the behavior of the ratio in relation to the 

trend for the industry. 

Cautions about Using Ratio Analysis 

Before discussing specific ratios, we should consider the following cautionsabouttheir use: 

1. Ratios that reveal large deviations from the norm merely indicate symptomsof a problem. 

Additional analysis is typically needed to isolate the causes ofthe problem. 

2. A single ratio does not generally provide sufficient information from whichto judge the overall 

performance of the firm. However, if an analysis is concernedonly with certain specific aspects of a 

firm’s financial position, one ortwo ratios may suffice. 

3. The ratios being compared should be calculated using financial statementsdated at the same point 

in time during the year. If they are not, the effects ofseasonalitymay produce erroneous conclusions 

and decisions. 

4. It is preferable to use audited financial statements for ratio analysis. If theyhave not been audited, 

the data in them may not reflect the firm’s true financialcondition. 

5. The financial data being compared should have been developed in the sameway. The use of 

differing accounting treatments—especially relative to inventoryand depreciation—can distort the 

results of ratio comparisons, regardless ofwhether cross-sectional or time-series analysis is used. 

6. Results can be distorted by inflation, which can cause the book values of inventory and 

depreciable assets to differ greatly from their replacement values. Additionally, inventory costs and 

depreciation write-offs can differ from their true values, thereby distorting profits. Without 

adjustment, inflation tends to cause older firms (older assets) to appear more efficient and profitable 

than newer firms (newer assets). Clearly, in using ratios, you must be careful when comparing older 

to newer firms or a firm to itself over a long period of time. 
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Categories of Financial Ratios 

Financial ratios can be divided for convenience into five basic categories: liquidity, activity, debt, 

profitability, and market ratios. Liquidity, activity, and debt ratios primarily measure risk. 

Profitability ratios measure return. Market ratioscaptureboth risk and return. As a rule, the inputs 

necessary for an effective financial analysis include, at minimum, the income statement and the 

balance sheet. We will use the 0202and0200 income statements and balance sheets. Note, however, 

that the ratios presented in the remainder of this chapter can be applied to almost any company. Of 

course, many companies’ indifferent industries use ratios that focus on aspects peculiar to their 

industry. 

1)Liquidity Ratios 

The liquidity of a firm is measured by its ability to satisfy its short-term obligationsas they come 

due. Liquidity refers to the solvency of the firm’s overall financial position—the ease with which it 

can pay its bills. Because a common precursor to financial distress and bankruptcy is low or 

declining liquidity, these ratios can provide early signs of cash flow problems and impending 

business failure. The two basic measures of liquidity are the current ratio and the quick (acid-test) 

ratio. 

The first ratios we'll take a look at in this tutorial are the liquidity ratios. Liquidity ratios attempt to 

measure a company's ability to pay off its short-term debt obligations. This is done by comparing a 

company's most liquid assets (or, those that can be easily converted to cash), its short-term 

liabilities. In general, the greater the coverage of liquid assets to short-term liabilities the better as it 

is a clear signal that a company can pay its debts that are coming due in the near future and still 

fund its ongoing operations. On the other hand, a company with a low coverage rate should raise a 

red flag for investors as it may be a sign that the company will have difficulty meeting running its 

operations, as well as meeting its obligations. The biggest difference between each ratio is the type 

of assets used in the calculation. While each ratio includes current assets, the more conservative 

ratios will exclude some current assets as they aren't as easily converted to cash. The ratios that 

we'll look at are the current, quick and cash ratios and we will also go over the cash conversion 

cycle, which goes into how the company turns its inventory into cash.  
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Current Ratio 

The current ratio, one of the most commonly cited financial ratios, measures thefirm’s ability to 

meet its short-term obligations.  

The current ratio is a popular financial ratio used to test a company's liquidity (also referred to as its 

current or working capital position) by deriving the proportion of current assets available to cover 

current liabilities. The concept behind this ratio is to ascertain whether a company's short-term 

assets (cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities, receivables and inventory) are readily 

available to pay off its short-term liabilities (notes payable, current portion of term debt, payables, 

accrued expenses and taxes). In theory, the higher the current ratio, the better. The equation is as 

follows:- 

              
              

                  
 

 

Quick (Acid-Test) Ratio 

The quick (acid-test) ratio is similar to the current ratio except that it excludes inventory, which is 

generally the least liquid current asset. The generally low liquidity of inventory results from two 

primary factors: (1) many types of inventory cannot be easily sold because they are partially 

completed items, special-purpose items, and the like; and (2) inventory is typically sold on credit, 

which means that it becomes an account receivable before being converted into cash.  

The quick ratio - aka the quick assets ratio or the acid-test ratio - is a liquidity indicator that further 

refines the current ratio by measuring the amount of the most liquid current assets there are to cover 

current liabilities. The quick ratio is more conservative than the current ratio because it excludes 

inventory and other current assets, which are more difficult to turn into cash. Therefore, a higher 

ratio means a more liquid current position. The equation is as follows:- 
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2)Activity Ratios 

Activity ratios measure the speed with which various accounts are converted into sales or cash—

inflows or outflows. With regard to current accounts, measures of liquidity are generally inadequate 

because differences in the composition of a firm’s current assets and current liabilities can 

significantly affect its “true” liquidity. It is therefore important to look beyond measures of overall 

liquidity and to assess the activity (liquidity) of specific current accounts. A number of ratios are 

available for measuring the activity of the most important current accounts, which include 

inventory, accounts receivable, and accounts payable. 

Inventory Turnover 

Inventory turnover commonly measures the activity, or liquidity, of a firm’s inventory. It is 

calculated as follows: 

                    
       

         
 

Average Collection Period 

The average collection period, or average age of accounts receivable, is useful in evaluating credit 

and collection policies.9It is arrived at by dividing the average daily sales into the accounts 

receivable balance: 

                           
   

                     
 

Average Payment Period 

The average payment period, or average age of accounts payable, is calculated in the same manner 

as the average collection period: 
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Total Asset Turnover 

The total asset turnover indicates the efficiency with which the firm uses its assets to generate sales. 

Total asset turnover is calculated as follows: 

                      
     

            
 

 

3)Debt Ratios 

The debt position of a firm indicates the amount of other people’s money being used to generate 

profits. In general, the financial analyst is most concerned with long-term debts, because these 

commit the firm to a stream of contractual payments over the long run. The more debt a firm has, 

the greater its risk of being unable to meet its contractual debt payments. Because creditors’ claims 

must be satisfied before the earnings can be distributed to shareholders, current and prospective 

shareholders pay close attention to the firm’s ability to repay debts. 

Lenders are also concerned about the firm’s indebtedness. In general, the more debt a firm uses in 

relation to its total assets, the greater its financial leverage. Financial leverage is the magnification 

of risk and return through the use of fixed-cost financing, such as debt and preferred stock. The 

more fixed-cost debt a firm uses, the greater will be its expected risk and return. 

There are two general types of debt measures: measures of the degree of indebtedness and measures 

of the ability to service debts. The degree of indebtedness measures the amount of debt relative to 

other significant balance sheet amounts. A popular measure of the degree of indebtedness is the 

debt ratio. The second type of debt measure, the ability to service debts, reflects a firm’s ability to 

make the payments required on a scheduled basis over the life of a debt. The firm’s ability to pay 

certain fixed charges is measured using coverage ratios. Typically, higher coverage ratios are 

preferred, but too high a ratio (above industry norms) may result in unnecessarily low risk and 

return. In general, the lower the firm’s coverage ratios, the less certain it is to be able to pay fixed 

obligations. If a firm is unable to pay these obligations, its creditors may seek immediate 

repayment, which in most instances would force a firm into bankruptcy. Two popular coverage 

ratios are the times interest earned ratio and the fixed payment coverage ratio. 
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Debt Ratio 

The third series of ratios in this tutorial are debt ratios. These ratios give users a general idea of the 

company's overall debt load as well as its mix of equity and debt. Debt ratios can be used to 

determine the overall level of financial risk a company and its shareholders face. In general, the 

greater the amount of debt held by a company the greater the financial risk of bankruptcy. The next 

chapter of this Debt Ratios section (Overview of Debt) will give readers a good idea of the different 

classifications of debt. While it is not mandatory in understanding the individual debt ratios, it will 

give some background information on the debt of a company. The ratios covered in this section 

include the debt ratio, which is gives a general idea of a company's financial leverage as does the 

debt-to-equity ratio. The capitalization ratio details the mix of debt and equity while the interest 

coverage ratio and the cash flow to debt ratio show how well a company can meet its obligations. 

The debt ratio measures the proportion of total assets financed by the firm’s creditors. The higher 

this ratio, the greater the amount of other people’s money being used to generate profits. The ratio 

is calculated as follows: 

             
                 

            
 

Times Interest Earned Ratio 

The times interest earned ratio, sometimes called the interest coverage ratio, measures the firm’s 

ability to make contractual interest payments. The higher its value, the better able the firm is to 

fulfill its interest obligations. The interest coverage ratio is used to determine how easily a company 

can pay interest expenses on outstanding debt. The ratio is calculated by dividing a company's 

earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) by the company's interest expenses for the same period. 

The lower the ratio, the more the company is burdened by debt expense. When a company's interest 

coverage ratio is only 1.5 or lower, its ability to meet interest expenses may be questionable. The 

times interest earned ratio is calculated as follows: 
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Fixed-Payment Coverage Ratio 

The fixed-payment coverage ratio measures the firm’s ability to meet all fixed payment obligations, 

such as loan interest and principal, lease payments, and preferred stock dividends. As is true of the 

times interest earned ratio, the higher this value, and the better. The formula for the fixed-payment 

coverage ratio is 

                              

                                            

                        (                                             )  
 

   
 

  

 

 

 

4) Profitability Ratios 

There are many measures of profitability. As a group, these measures enable analysts to evaluate 

the firm’s profits with respect to a given level of sales, a certain level of assets, or the owners’ 

investment. Without profits, a firm could not attract outside capital. Owners, creditors, and 

management pay close attention to boosting profits because of the great importance the market 

places on earnings. 

Components of Income Statements 

A popular tool for evaluating profitability in relation to sales is the common-size income statement. 

Each item on this statement is expressed as a percentage of sales. Common-size income statements 

are especially useful in comparing performance across years. Three frequently cited ratios of 

profitability that can be read directly from the common-size income statement are  

(1) The gross profit margin. 

(2) The operating profit margin. 

(3) The net profit margin. 
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Gross Profit Margin 

This section of the tutorial discusses the different measures of corporate profitability and financial 

performance. These ratios, much like the operational performance ratios, give users a good 

understanding of how well the company utilized its resources in generating profit and shareholder 

value. 

In the income statement, there are four levels of profit or profit margins - gross profit, operating 

profit, pretax profit and net profit. The term "margin" can apply to the absolute number for a given 

profit level and/or the number as a percentage of net sales/revenues. Profit margin analysis uses the 

percentage calculation to provide a comprehensive measure of a company's profitability on a 

historical basis (3-5 years) and in comparison to peer companies and industry benchmarks. 

Basically, it is the amount of profit (at the gross, operating, pretax or net income level) generated by 

the company as a percent of the sales generated. The objective of margin analysis is to detect 

consistency or positive/negative trends in a company's earnings. Positive profit margin analysis 

translates into positive investment quality. To a large degree, it is the quality, and growth, of a 

company's earnings that drive its stock price. 

The long-term profitability of a company is vital for both the survivability of the company as well 

as the benefit received by shareholders. It is these ratios that can give insight into the all important 

"profit". In this section, we will look at four important profit margins, which display the amount of 

profit a company generates on its sales at the different stages of an income statement. We'll also 

show you how to calculate the effective tax rate of a company. The last three ratios covered in this 

section - Return on Assets, Return on Equity and Return on Capital Employed - detail how effective 

a company is at generating income from its resources. 

The gross profit margin measures the percentage of each sales dollar remaining after the firm has 

paid for its goods. The higher the gross profit margin, the better that is, the lower the relative cost of 

merchandise sold). The gross profit margin is calculated as follows: 
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Operating Profit Margin 

The operating profit margin measures the percentage of each sales dollar remaining after all costs 

and expenses other than interest, taxes, and preferred stock dividends are deducted. It represents the 

“pure profits” earned on each sales dollar. 

By subtracting selling, general and administrative (SG&A), or operating, expenses from a 

company's gross profit number, we get operating income. Management has much more control over 

operating expenses than its cost of sales outlays. Thus, investors need to scrutinize the operating 

profit margin carefully. Positive and negative trends in this ratio are, for the most part, directly 

attributable to management decisions. 

A company's operating income figure is often the preferred metric (deemed to be more reliable) of 

investment analysts, versus its net income figure, for making inter-company comparisons and 

financial projections. 

Operating profits are “pure” because they measure only the profits earned on operations and ignore 

interest, taxes, and preferred stock dividends. A high operating profit margin is preferred. The 

operating profit margin is calculated as follows: 

                         
                

      
 

Net Profit Margin 

The net profit margin measures the percentage of each sales dollar remaining after all costs and 

expenses, including interest, taxes, and preferred stock dividends, have been deducted. Often 

referred to simply as a company's profit margin, the so-called bottom line is the most often 

mentioned when discussing a company's profitability. While undeniably an important number, 

investors can easily see from a complete profit margin analysis that there are several income and 

expense operating elements in an income statement that determine a net profit margin. It behooves 

investors to take a comprehensive look at a company's profit margins on a systematic basis. The 

higher the firm’s net profit margin, the better. The net profit margin is calculated as follows: 
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Earnings per Share (EPS) 

The firm’s earnings per share (EPS) are generally of interest to present or prospective stockholders 

and management. As we noted earlier, EPS represents the number of dollars earned during the 

period on behalf of each outstanding share of common stock. Earnings per share are calculated as 

follows: 

    
                                         

                                            
 

Return on Total Assets (ROA) 

The return on total assets (ROA), often called the return on investment (ROI), measures the overall 

effectiveness of management in generating profits with its available assets. This ratio indicates how 

profitable a company is relative to its total assets. The return on assets (ROA) ratio illustrates how 

well management is employing the company's total assets to make a profit. The higher the return, 

the more efficient management is in utilizing its asset base. The ROA ratio is calculated by 

comparing net income to average total assets, and is expressed as a percentage. The higher the 

firm’s return on total assets, the better. The return on total assets is calculated as follows: 

     
                                         

            
 

Return on Common Equity (ROE) 

The return on common equity (ROE) measures the return earned on the common stockholders’ 

investment in the firm. Generally, the higher this return, the better off is the owners. This ratio 

indicates how profitable a company is by comparing its net income to its average shareholders' 

equity. The return on equity ratio (ROE) measures how much the shareholders earned for their 

investment in the company. The higher the ratio percentage, the more efficient management is in 

utilizing its equity base and the better return is to investors. Return on common equity is calculated 

as follows: 
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5) Market Ratios 

Market ratios relate the firm’s market value, as measured by its current share price, to certain 

accounting values. These ratios give insight into how well investors in the marketplace feel the firm 

are doing in terms of risk and return. 

They tend to reflect, on a relative basis, the common stockholders’ assessment of all aspects of the 

firm’s past and expected future performance. Here we consider two popular market ratios, one that 

focuses on earnings and another that considers book value. 

 

Price/Earnings (P/E) Ratio 

The price/earnings (P/E) ratio is commonly used to assess the owners’ appraisal of share value. The 

P/E ratio measures the amount that investors are willing to pay for each dollar of a firm’s earnings. 

The level of this ratio indicates the degree of confidence that investors have in the firm’s future 

performance. A valuation ratio used by investors which compares a stock's per-share price (market 

value) to its book value (shareholders' equity). The price/earnings ratio (P/E) is the best known of 

the investment valuation indicators. The P/E ratio has its imperfections, but it is nevertheless the 

most widely reported and used valuation by investment professionals and the investing public. The 

financial reporting of both companies and investment research services use a basic earnings per 

share (EPS) figure divided into the current stock price to calculate the P/E multiple (i.e. how many 

times a stock is trading (its price) per each dollar of EPS). It's not surprising that estimated EPS 

figures are often very optimistic during bull markets, while reflecting pessimism during bear 

markets. Also, as a matter of historical record, it's no secret that the accuracy of stock analyst 

earnings estimates should be looked at skeptically by investors. Nevertheless, analyst estimates and 

opinions based on forward-looking projections of a company's earnings do play a role in Wall 

Street's stock-pricing considerations. Historically, the average P/E ratio for the broad market has 

been around 15, although it can fluctuate significantly depending on economic and market 

conditions. The ratio will also vary widely among different companies and industries. The higher 

the P/E ratio, the greater the investor confidence. The P/E ratio is calculated as follows: 
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               (   )          
                                      

                 
 

 

Market/Book (M/B) Ratio 

The market/book (M/B) ratio provides an assessment of how investors view the firm’s performance. 

It relates the market value of the firm’s shares to their book— strict accounting—value. To 

calculate the firm’s M/B ratio, we first need to find the book value per share of common stock: 

                                    

  
                    

                                             
 

            (   )        
                                      

                                     
 

7)Proprietary Ratio:  

 

It establishes the relationship between proprietor’s funds and total assets. Proprietors fund means 

share capital + reserves + surplus, Both of capital and revenue nature. Loss and fictitious assets are 

deducted. This ratio shows the extent to which the shareholders own the business. The difference 

between this ratio and 100 represents the ratio of total liabilities to total assets. It is computed as 

follows:  

                   
                                          

             (                           ) 
 

 

Higher the ratio the better it is for all concerned.  

Proprietary Ratio highlights the general financial position of the enterprise. This ratio is of great 

importance to the creditors to ascertain the proportion of shareholders’ funds in the total assets 

employed in the firm.  
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8)Cash ratio :- 

 

The cash ratio is an indicator of a company's liquidity that further refines both the current ratio and 

the quick ratio by measuring the amount of cash, cash equivalents or invested funds there are in 

current assets to cover current liabilities.  

The cash ratio is the most stringent and conservative of the three short-term liquidity ratios (current, 

quick and cash). It only looks at the most liquid short-term assets of the company, which are those 

that can be most easily used to pay off current obligations. It also ignores inventory and receivables, 

as there are no assurances that these two accounts can be converted to cash in a timely matter to 

meet current liabilities. 

Formula: 

            
                                    

                    
 

 

 

 

Cash Conversion Cycle ;- 

 
This liquidity metric expresses the length of time (in days) that a company uses to sell inventory, 

collect receivables and pay its accounts payable. The cash conversion cycle (CCC) measures the 

number of days a company's cash is tied up in the production and sales process of its operations and 

the benefit it gets from payment terms from its creditors. The shorter this cycle, the more liquid the 

company's working capital position is. The CCC is also known as the "cash" or "operating" cycle. 

Formula: 

                                   

Where: 

DIO=Days Inventory Outstanding 

DSO=Days Sales Outstanding  

DPO=Days Payables Outstanding 

(Williams, 200, P.55 – 200) 
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Summary:- 
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Chapter 4 

Implementing the Case 
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An overview of the construction companies in the Gaza Strip 

Accelerating change has become one of the most important attributes and realities of our times, and 

today haschangeseven become variables the world one small village thanks to the communications 

revolution via satellite and advanced communication devices, which led to the reduction of distance 

and time and the markets are opened wide map of the world and spread Investors and business men 

and wherever they are marketers the opportunity to invest and intensified competition. 

 

With the large increase in the size of companies, institutions and factories and the expansion of its 

business, saw the concept of planning Strategic huge demand on it, so the need to adopt new 

methods of managing multiple installations branches has prevailed and the use of strategies through 

strategic planning. As well as managers sensed the importance of having Long-term annual plans 

exceed the conviction that it must by all employees of the facility, and this is not only By the 

presence of well-established philosophy of the managers in any organization, the adoption of this 

type of planning Work, and taking into account the study of all the internal and external factors that 

can affect the performance of Organizations. 

In light of the rapid changes since the beginning of the second Palestinian uprising (Intifada) in the 

late September 2000, and the resulting actions represented in the Israeli closure of the border 

crossings and enforce Siege, the Palestinian economy experienced a sharp decline in most economic 

activities, and distortion in Palestinian economic structure, and is reflected in the GDP. 

And offers the construction sector in the Gaza Strip since the beginning of the intifada in September 

2000, yet to losses Successive those losses appeared clear in its contribution to GDP, reaching its 

lowest Level in 2002 where he scored a contribution rate of 3.8% after they had reached the top 

Contribution rate in 1999 of 11%.  

This sector is suffering at the moment from many problems such as the weaknesses local 

investments in the field of Construction because of poor economic conditions and the absence of 

laws and regulations, and the weakness of research And studies related to the construction, making 

construction companies in the Gaza Strip are unable to Continue, and the erosion of their capital as 
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a result of the accumulation of losses without compensation in their work and the existence of 

intense competition,Faisal it to collapse or bankruptcy, or merger with other companies.  

The concept of strategic planning of the most important management concepts that  they are widely 

acclaimed and widespread in the past Last, it is calculated and ready to face what is expected, and a 

rally of activity in order to achieve the goals set5 carefully, as it includes the creation of conditions 

conducive to absorb and manage change for the benefit of those goals, especially if corporate 

managers convinced that the planning of the main priorities they have, as well as setting clear goals 

and are adaptation of the circumstances and to facilitate the achievement data, and then be yielding 

positive results due to the anticipated and to create possibilities to reach them.  

This study identifies the reality of strategic planning, and identified the extent and clarity of the 

scientific concept proper strategic planning with managers in the construction companies in the 

Gaza Strip, and the extent of use due the importance of this sector and its significant role in 

rebuilding the country after the destruction over the past decades, both in infrastructure and basic 

facilities or private enterprises, or the urgent needs of a huge number of Natural housing units to 

meet the needs of the returnees. 

Brief about the Company  

The Arabian company is an Ltd Co. the Number of investors is 300 Investor,, and is managed by a 

Broad of Directors that is consisted of 5 members in the Presidency of Mr:Meshel Al-Sayeg. 

 

APC Company was Founded in 1989 in a Starting Capital of one Million JOD with the Cooperation 

of Two French Companies ,, The First is 1)Pic Group for Painting Technology and The other is 

2)Rossel company for Machinery and Production lines . 

 

The Company Started Producing Seven types of Paints in 1993 with a Production capacity of 180 

Tons monthly and its Production Exceeded , in 1997 and the Capital was Raised in the value of 

500,000 JOD to have a Sum total of 1,500,000 JOD Causing a raise in the production lines. 
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APC Co. currently is now producing more than 100 Types of Paints in various colors in a 

Production capacity of 350 Tons monthly; The Company is now cooperating with (National Paints 

Company) Technical Cooperation in the field of Industrial Paints and Decor Paints. 

 

Specifications of the Products 

The Company approved in the beginning samples of paints that are existing in the Different markets 

and by checking on them by the French company's Laboratories (Pic Group) and analyzing the 

samples and trying to create a similar product or even better in the Chemical & Physical 

specifications. 

 

The Company gained The Israeli (Taken) Examinations, and the Royal Scientific association 

Examinations,, and Currently is holding the Palestinian Standards & Specifications Certificate ,, 

The company also has an agreement with the association of Standards & Specifications to use the 

association's Laboratories 

 

There is a Laboratory for the Company that is provided with the latest equipment’s and Machines 

from ( Sheen )  Ltd. British Company. 

 

This laboratory provides necessary Chemical and Physical Examinations to grantee a high Quality 

products,, and to make sure that the products meet the Specifications & that the Paints could afford 

different Environmental changes and Climate changes. 

 

The company takes from time to time Trademarks painting Companies and examine them to see the 

market and its developments and to cope with the Competition from other Companies. 
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One of the Companies activities is to make different workshops and Engineers meetings to give 

them a Feed back to every new aspect that is coming in the face of the company's future challenges. 

 

The Company has technical staff of engineers and Painters that try to solve the firm’s affairs and 

Problems through-out testing samples and try to get high Quality products. 

 

Main Objectives 

 Maintain the Quality of the Products. 

 Satisfy the needs of our Clients. 

 Enhance & Develop Quality control system and Operation performance in our Factories. 

 Increase the trust and cooperation with our suppliers. 

 Increase the Satisfaction of the Employees in the group. 

 Increase the Efficiency of our factories in the different regions. 

 Maintain the Environment. 

 Decrease the costs of the different operations. 

 create and develop new products  

 Increase our sales nationally & Internationally  

 Enter new Markets. 
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Applying the study  

 

The Arabian Company for manufacturing Paints 

The Manufacturing area / Nablus 

Palestine 

Sales:- 

The Net Sales of the year 2012 what is around 3718612 JOD in a decreasing percentage of 

0.96% from 2011 sales that reached 3209288 JOD in a change of 30676 JOD. 

 

 

 

Chart shows the evolution of the form of sales during the previous five years:- 
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Statement 2102 2100 Change % Change 

Net sales/ JD 3178612 3209288 -30676 -0.96% 
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We Notice the Following:- 

We can notice from the upper figure that the growth & the Development through the last 5 years 

that the years 2008 and 2009 were constant & there was a remarkable growth in the year 2010 

and a Quite constant growth in the years 2008 & 2009 . 

 

The following is the value of the annual percentage change for net sales for the previous five 

years: 

Statement 2012 2011 2010 2009 

Net sales 3178612 3209288 2682071 1934379 

value of annual change -30676 527217 747692 -11295 

Annual % change -0.96% 19.66% 38.65% -0.58% 

 

 

Expenses:- 

The aggregate expenditures for the year 2012 has reached 512858 JOD with a Decreased 

Percentage of 4.67% from the aggregate expenditures of the year 2011 that reached 537980 and 

shown in the figure below.  

Statement 2102 2100 Change % Change 

Year expenses 512858 537980 -25122 -4.67% 

 

And in the following chart a comparison between expenditures of the years 2010 & 2011 and the 

amount & the Percentage of change:- 

1-Marketing Expenses 2012 2011 Change % Change 

Salesmen salaries 35262 25669 9593 37.37% 

Accrued vacations 

(paid) 

3260 -89 3349 -3762.92% 

Compensation leave 

services 

186 2051 -1865 -90.93% 

Expenses exhibitions 1198 4712 -3514 -74.58% 

Advertising expenses 23706 44166 -20460 -46.33% 

Marketing expenses 1142 1127 05 1.33% 

Charge transfer Sales 3754 5226 -1472 -28.17% 

Loading and unloading 

expenses 

98 40 55 145.00% 

Expenses samples 5716 10917 -5201 -47.64% 
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Expenses traffic 

violations 

148 311 -163 -52.41% 

Fuel expenses 46828 42025 4803 11.43% 

Car Maintenance 

Expenses 

13667 21697 -8030 -37.01% 

Auto insurance 

expenses 

5991 4106 1885 45.91% 

Selling commissions 13830 11661 2169 18.60% 

Vehicle Licensing 

expenses 

1721 1336 385 28.82% 

Depreciation of fixed 

assets 

7646 7264 382 5.26% 

Expenses pigments 2719 2 2719 100.00% 

Total 166872 182219 -15347 -8.42% 

 

And as noticed from the upper figure that the selling expenditures has decreased in a Percentage 

of 8.42% and the change in expenditures is 15347 JOD. 

 

2-General and 

administrative expenses 

2012 2011 Change % Change 

Administrative salaries 55538 58369 -2831 -4.85% 

Accrued rents 434 -208 642 -308.65% 

Leaving the service 

compensation 

7607 4787 2820 58.91% 

Expenses secure money 

transfers 

52 55 -3 -5.45% 

Equivalents 14969 12030 2939 24.43% 

Fees and expenses of 

licenses 

9100 6824 2276 33.35% 

Hospitality Expenses 2402 3946 -1544 -39.13% 

Travel & transportation 

expenses 

4953 5669 -716 -12.63% 

Stationery expenses 2967 4050 -1083 -26.74% 

Expenses donations 509 443 66 14.90% 

Mail and telephone 

expenses 

3937 5328 -1391 -26.11% 

Commissions and bank 

interest 

1746 1313 433 32.98% 

Expenses cleaner 996 1047 -51 -4.87% 

Receivables dubious 

expenses 

0 11800 -11800 -100.00% 

General expenses 550 581 -31 -5.34% 
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Consultations and 

studies 

0 4047 - 4047 100.00% 

Professional and 

consulting fees 

3000 3000 0 0% 

Law expenses and court 

fees 

2858 2506 352 14.05% 

Hardware maintenance 

expenses 

6914 4702 2212 47.04% 

Board of Directors' 

remuneration 

7000 7000 0 0% 

Movements of the 

Board of Directors 

3500 3500 0 0% 

Fees include financial 

market 

1786 1738 48 2.76% 

Building Maintenance 

Expenses 

1598 1515 83 100% 

Depreciation of fixed 

assets 

8147 7678 469 6.11% 

Total 140563 151720 -11157 -7.35% 

 

And as noticed in the upper figure that the managerial expenditures has decreased in about 

11157 or in a percentage of 7.35% as shown up in the figure.  

3-Production expenses 2012 2011 Change % Change 

Direct wages 84829 93647 -8818 -9.41% 

Accrued vacations 620 -298 -760 255.03% 

Provision for leaving 

the service 

10867 6838 4029 58.92% 

Water and electricity 

expenses 

17670 19055 -1385 -7.27% 

Laboratory expenses 205 1081 -876 -81.04% 

Maintenance expenses 2130 6007 -3877 -64.54% 

Work wear 517 331 186 56.19% 

Fuel and maintenance 

Mathura Electricity 

0 2806 - 2806 100% 

Expenses fire 

extinguisher 

361 454 -93 -20.48% 

Expenses milk 633 624 9 1.44% 

Insurance and factory 

workers 

7008 7153 -145 -2.03% 

Depreciation of fixed 

assets 

50889 48130 2759 5.73% 

Blitat expenses 7037 304 6733 2214.80% 

Packaging expenses 4431  0  4431 100% 

Staff training expenses 2086 1387 699 100% 
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Forklift expenses 5586 5015 571 11.39% 

Wrestling Parts 3149 1023 2126 207.82% 

Elevator maintenance 

expenses and electricity 

1745 1449 296 100% 

Waste transportation 1419 1514 -95 123.20% 

Misc. 4241 7521 -3280 -43.61% 

Total 205423 204041 -296 -0.15% 

 

And as noticed in the upper figure that the industrial costs has decreased although that this 

decrease is low it has reached 0.15% and the value of change is 296 JOD and although the 

decrease in expenditures is low but the decrease was above all Expenses as shown in the figure 

below 

 

The following table of analytical expenses and a percentage of sales for 2012 compared with 

2011:- 

Statement 2012 2011 Change % Change 

Net sales 3178612 3209288 -30676 -0.96% 

Production expenses 205423 204041 1382 0.68% 

Production expenses 

ratio 

6.46% 6.36%   

General & 

administrative 

expenses 

140563 151720 -11157 -7.35% 

Proportion of 

administrative 

expenses 

4.42% 4.73%   

Marketing Expenses 166872 182219 -15347 -8.42% 

Proportion of 

marketing expenses 

5.25% 5.68%   

Total expenses 512858 537980 -25122 -4.67% 

Percentage of total 

expenses 

16.13% 16.76%   

 

And as noticed in the upper figure that the percentage of expenditures has decreased 0.63%. 
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The following percentage of cost of sales items sold:- 

Statement 2012 2011 Change % Change 

Net sales 3178612 3209288 -30676 -0.96% 

C.O.S.G 2350731 2369864 -19133 -0.81% 

C.O.S.G % 73.95% 73.84%  0.11% 

 

 

Third: - Customer Receivables:- 

The aggregate balance of customer’s receivables in addition of checks that are collected at the 

end of 2012 what Equivalent is to1146910 JOD by an increasing percentage of 3.88% and at the 

following chart illustrates the following:- 

Statement 2012 2011 Change % Change 

Customer receivables 290178 345418 -55240 -15.99% 

Doubtful receivables 29556 29556 0 0% 

Dated Cheques 

collection 

824134 709578 114556 16.14% 

Fund checks 3042 19561 -16519 -84.45% 

Total receivables and 

checks 

1146910 1104113 42797 3.88% 

 

The following is a graph that illustrates the chronological age of the receivables in 31/12/2012 

without doubtful receivables:- 

Statement Percentage 

1-30 days 57% 

31-60 days 13% 

61-90 days 9% 

90 days and more 21% 
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Fourth: Ratios and rates 

1)Current Ratio (Current assets ÷ current liabilities) 

This is an indication of the company's ability to meet its short-term obligations by its current 

assets :- 

Statement 10/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2010 Percentages of 

reference 

Current assets 3013480 2767932 2908071  

Current 

Liabilities 

1455577 1429076 1300447  

Current Ratio 2.070 0.937 2.236 2 

 

And as noticed in the upper figure that the percentage change of the circulation in 2012 has 

increased compared with the year 2011and in every one JOD short-term commitment at the end 

of 31/12/2012 is confronted by a 2.070 JOD in the hand of the company and the company can 

reserve its right of a big Portion of its liquidity in a form of Bonds and shares in order not to 

obstruct the Monetary without any profit and a portion of this liquidity has been invested through 

purchasing shares from large companies in order not to invest this liquidity and obstruct it. 

 

Percentage 

1-30 days

31-60 days

61-90 days

90 days and more
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Quick Ratio (Current assets – inventory) ÷ Current liabilities 

And this is a signal that the company can afford paying its short-term debts by using its assets 

without the inventory, through its current and non-current assets. 

Statement 10/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2010 Percentages of 

reference 

Current assets 3013480 2767932 2908071  

Inventory 1080005 856512 830556  

Current assets – 

Inventory 

1933475 1911420 2077515  

Current 

Liabilities 

1455577 1429076 1300447  

Quick ratio 1.328 1.338 1.598 1.25 

 

Note that the quick ratio has been declined slightly, however, the signal reports that the company 

until 31/12/2012 can afford and with a comfortably with its commitments from the liquidity and 

the quite liquidity that is provided. 

 

Efficiency ratios 

Asset Turnover(Net sales / total assets):- 

This index measures the company's ability to achieve sales commensurate with the volume of 

investments 

Statement 10/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2010 Percentages of 

reference 

Net sales 3178612 3209288 2682071  

Total assets 3986331 3725271 3653563  

Turnover 0.797 0.861 0.734 1.33 

 

Note that there is a fairly decrease in the asset turnover rate, but still below the normal 

average, which means the company needs to increase its sales even to proportionate with 

the size of the investment. 
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Turnover Net Fixed Assets(Net Sales / Fixed assets after depreciation):- 

This index measures the extent of the company's efficiency in seizing fixed assets: - 

Statement 31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2010 Percentages of 

reference 

Net sales 3178612 3209288 2682071  

Total assets 801502 779436 709057  

Turnover 3.966 4.117 3.783 2.18 

 

Note that the ratio has outperformed all ratios referenced to the continued growth of sales and 

because many of the assets have been consumed has exceeded the Ratio of the guideline ratios 

significantly. 

 

 

 

 

Inventory Turnover (Cost of sales / Average turnover)(The average stock: opening stock + 

Closing stock index this storage efficiency company):- 

This is an indication of the efficiency of the storage company. 

Statement 31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2010 Percentages of 

reference 

Cost of sales 2350731 2369864 1750715  

Raw materials 

inventory at the end 

of the year 

520080 402631 359330  

Average raw 

material 

461356 380981 332245  

Turnover of raw 

materials 

5.095 6.220 5.269 8 

Stocks ready-made 

materials 

439363 352265 357671  

Average inventory 

ready 

395814 354968 297737  

Turnover ready-

made material 

5.939 6.676 5.880  

 

Note that there is almost constant in the rate of rotation, but he remains without reference ratios. 
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Average storage period (Day 360 ÷ turnover rate) 

This index measures the number of days on average storage 

Statement 31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2010 Percentages of 

reference 

Turnover of 

raw materials 

5.095 6.220 5.269 8 

Average 

storage period 

70.654 57.874 68.320 45 days 

Turnover 

ready-made 

materials 

5.939 6.676 5.880  

Average 

storage period 

60.616 53.922 61.224  

 

And it is noticed that there is almost constant storage, whether is ready or raw materials but 

remain without reference ratios. 

 

Turnover receivables(Include customer receivables and Dated Cheques) 

This is an indication of the efficiency of credit policy: - 

Statement 31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2010 

Net sales 3178612 3209288 2682071 

Total customer 

receivables 

319734 374974 221071 

Dated Cheques 824134 709578 722589 

Total receivables 

and checks 

1143868 1084552 943660 

Average 

receivables and 

checks 

1114210 1014106 769201 

Turnover 2.853 3.165 3.487 

 

Note that the receivables turnover rate fairly constant over the past three years because the credit 

policy was not changed knowing that there were receivables has been dropped by   87180 dinars 

was renewed to 29556 dinars bad debts, which appeared to the financial statements. 
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The average collection period for receivables(360÷ Turnover receivables) 

This is an indication of the efficiency of collection policy: - 

Statement 2012 2011 2010 

Turnover customer 

receivables and checks 

2.853 3.165 3.487 

The average collection 

period / day 

126.192 133.757 103.246 

 

 

Note that the collection period to the debtors has raised a little, because the policy of the facilities 

granted to customers has risen slightly so in line with the competitive situation in the market. 

 

 

Average repayment period (payables + futures checks) * 360 days ÷ Cost of sales 

This is an indication to the credit for which the company receives from suppliers: - 

Statement 31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2010 

Accounts Payable 756773 746787 589444 

Checks futures 339242 425569 410431 

Total accounts 

payable and checks 

futures 

1096015 1172356 999875 

Cost of sales 2350731 2369864 1750715 

Average 

repayment period 

167.848 178.090 205.605 

 

Note that the facilities obtained by the company have more than five months, but with the keep of 

maintaining satisfaction suppliers. 
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Conversion period (cycle):- 

It is the time required to transfer the goods to cash from the moment of purchase of raw 

materials and even collect from customers through manufacturing, selling and equal 

Average raw material storage period + Average material off-the-shelf storage period + Average 

receivables collection period =257.457=70.652+60.613+126.192 

 

In other words, the conversion period of up to 257 days while the average repayment period 

payables are 167 days in other words, there is a shortfall in the transfer period up to 90 days 

therefore, the treatment of this deficit lies in the ability to reduce the chronological age of the 

stock by improving the storage and procurement policies on the one hand and the ability to 

reduce the collection period the other hand, improve the effectiveness of effortsMarketing. 

 

Debt Ratio (Total liabilities / total assets):- 

This ratio shows the company's indebtedness 

Statement 31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2010 Percentages of 

reference 

Total Assets 1455577 1429076 1300447  

Property 

Rights 

3986331 3725271 3653563  

Percent 37% 38% 36% 50% Upper 

limit 

 

 

We notice that the ratio within the safety limit, which means that in the future if economic 

conditions are improved and more, it is political shows signs of expanding investment and he can 

rely on loans to finance expansion because a large margin of safety for the parties to be given 

credit 
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Total assets to equity: Total assets / equity:- 

The higher this ratio has shown to increase the adoption of the company's indebtedness to 

finance its activities:- 

 

Generally noted that the company relies heavily on funding on equity and there are no loans or 

any the last external financing 

Statement 31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2010 Percentages of 

reference 

Total Assets 3986331 3725271 3653563  

Property 

Rights 

2530754 2296195 2353116  

Percent 1.575 1.622 1.553 2 Upper limit 

 

Profitability ratios 

Gross profit margin (gross operating profit / net sales): 

Index on the company's ability to achieve profit from ordinary activities 

Statement 2012 2011 2010 Percentages of 

reference 

Net sales 

 

3178612 3209288 2682071  

Cost of sales 2350731 2369864 1750715  

Total operating 

profit 

827881 839424 931356  

Gross profit ratio 26% 26% 35% 22% 

Notes that the ratio has exceeded descent checklist has doubled in the event of increase of Sales 

and growth. 

The following is an analysis of the components of cost of sales:- 

Statement 2012 2011 2010 

Net sales 3178612 3209288 2682071 

 cost of raw materials 1872513 1796294 1370567 

cost of raw materials ratio 59% 56% 51% 

Production expenses 205423 204041 185247 

Production expenses ratio 6% 6% 7% 

Cost of sales 2350731 2369864 1750715 

Cost of sales ratio 74% 74% 65% 
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Due to the high prices of raw materials and production efficiency has improved to a certain 

extent and that the expenditures have and seized ratio improvement is possible if prices were 

raised slightly in parallel with the growth in sales. 

B - The ratio of net profit (net profit from operations / net sales): 

Notes that there is an increase in cost of sales resulting from the rise in the cost of raw materials 

and production expenses which is an indicator of the company's ability to profit from the sale . 

 

The ratio of net profit (Net profit from operations / net sales):- 

Statement 2012 2011 2010 Percentages of 

reference 

Net profit from 

operations 

520446 505485 609935  

Net sales 3178612 3209288 2682071  

Percent 16% 16% 23% 7.5% 

 

Note that the percentage of net profit semi-fixed between 2012 and 2011, when she appeared by 

16% 

 

Rate of return on assets (Net profit before tax / total assets):- 

Index to the company's ability to achieve a pre-tax profit on total investments 

Statement 2012 2011 2010 Percentages of 

reference 

Net profit before 

tax 

530348 487328 698622  

Total Assets 3986331 3725271 3653563  

Rate of return on 

assets 

13% 13% 01%  7.2% 

 

 

Note that the return on average total assets quasi-steady compared with 2011, but the multiplier 

ratios of reference. 
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The rate of return on the right of ownership (Net profit before tax / equity):- 

Index to the company's ability to achieve profit before tax on equity (ability Profit) 

Statement 2012 2011 2010 Percentages of 

reference 

Net profit before 

tax 

530348 487328 698622  

Property Rights 2530754 2296195 2353116  

Rate of return on 

the right of 

ownership 

21% 21% 30% 14.30% 

 

Notes that the ability Profit of the company has exceeded the reference ratios over the past years 

and this provides a good and acceptable. 

 

 

List of uses and sources of funds 

Uses of funds Sources of funds 

The increase in Dated 

Cheques 

114556 Decrease in prepaid 

expenses 

991 

Increase in guarantees 

refunds 

0110 Decrease in accounts 

receivable 

55240 

 The increase in accrued 

interest payable 

151 Decrease in equity 

investments 

6554 

The increase in goods last 

term 

223496 Decrease in orders 17065 

Lack of checks issued 86327 Decrease in the value 

added tax (VAT) 

3971 

The increase in the income 

tax advances 

30153 Increase in accounts 

payable 

9986 

Decrease in Cash 1 Increase in shareholders' 29969 

The increase in net fixed 

assets 

22066 Increase in accrued 

expenses 

26752 

 1 Increase in provisions 21306 

 1 Increase in reserves 94989 

 1 The increase in the 

accumulated profits 

164385 

 1 Decrease in Cash 46821 

 1   

    

Total uses 477949 Total sources 477949 
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Financial Ratios 2009 
Audited 

2010 
Audited 

2011 
Audite

d 

31/3/2
012 

30/6/
2012 

30/9/2
012 

31/12/2
012 

2012 
Audi
ted 

Turnover Ratio 0.016      
                
                

               

0.025 0.016 0.001 0.002 0.003 0.01 0.01 

Earnings Per 
Share 

0.200      
                
                

               

0.433 0.301 0.057 0.137 0.235 0.34 0.34 

Dividend Per 
Share 

- - - - - - - - 

Book Value Per 
Share 

1.315      
                
                

             

1.569 1.531 1.388 1.465 1.574 1.69 1.69 

Price Earnings 
Ratio (Times 

5.387      
                
                

           

4.707 8.148 10.310 9.977 8.846 7.33 7.33 

Dividend Yield - - - - - - - - 

Dividends  - - - - - - - - 

Price to Book 
Value (Times 

0.821      
                
                

            

1.300 1.600 2.234 2.048 1.690 1.49 1.49 

Gross Margin 0.292      
                
                

            

0.347 0.260 0.256 0.233 0.242 0.26 0.26 

Margin Before 
Interest and 

Tax 

0.168      
                
                

            

0.260 0.152 0.163 0.137 0.152 0.17 0.17 

Profit Margin 0.155      
                
                

            

0.242 0.141 0.151 0.126 0.140 0.162 0.16
2 

Return on 
Assets 

0.115      
                
                

            

0.178 0.121 0.024 0.054 0.088 0.129 0.12
9 
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(http://www.apcpaints.ps/about_us.html) 

 

 

 

 

 

Return on 
Equity 

0.152      
                
                

           

0.276 0.196 0.041 0.094 0.149 0.204 0.20
4 

Debit Ratio 0.248      
                
                

            

0.356 0.384 0.400 0.427 0.412 0.37 0.37 

Equity Ratio 0.752 0.644 0.616 0.600 0.573 0.588 0.63 0.63 

         

Total Assets 
Turnover 
(Times) 

0.737      
                
                

           

0.734 0.861 0.162 0.425 0.626 0.80 0.80 

Fixed Assets 
Turnover  

3.007      
                
                

             

3.783 4.117 0.730 1.980 3.075 3.97 3.97 

Working Capital 
Turnover  

1.369      
                
                

            

1.539 2.227 0.450 1.221 1.687 1.89 1.89 

Current Ratio 
(Times) 

3.483      
                
                

           

2.449 2.086 1.982 1.879 1.971 2.25 2.25 

Working Capital 1,412,657  
                    

                    

1,742,280  
             

1,440,7
68 

,211,248
3 

1,334,3
70 

1,488,6
15 

1,680,110
0.0 

1,68
0,11

00.0 
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Conclusions:- 

An income statement and balance sheet are two very important financial tools that Arabian Paints 

Company can use to evaluate the financial health of their operations. An income statement shows 

the income and expenses over a period of time, typically 1 year. A balance sheet shows assets, 

liabilities, and net worth at a given point in time. Together, these two statements show the 

profitability and solvency of anArabian Paints Company. 

 

A sustainable business and mission requires effective planning and financial management. Ratio 

analysis is a useful management tool that will improve our understanding of financial results and 

trends over time, and provide key indicators of organizational performance. Managers of Arabian 

Paints Company will use ratio analysis to pinpoint strengths and weaknesses from which strategies 

and initiatives can be formed. Funders may use ratio analysis to measure our results against other 

organizations or make judgments concerning management effectiveness and mission impact. 

From ratio analysis of Balance Sheet and P & L Statement of Arabian Paints Company of 2010-

2012 it was concluded that liquidity position of the company is good, current ratio, quick ratio, and 

working capital were found to be acceptable. 

Short term liquidity position of Arabian Paints Company of 2010-2012 was good in 2011 and 2012. 

However, current ratio, quick ratio, return on ordinary shareholder's funds ratio, return on capital 

employed ratio, net profit margin ratio, gross profit margin ratio, sales revenue to capital employed 

ratio, and earnings per share for the year 2012 were satisfactory compared with the year 2011. 

The ratios that were found to be unsatisfactory is the return on total Assets (ROA).   

 

In order to reach to the growth & the Development through the last 5 years that the years 2008 and 

2009 were constant & there was a remarkable growth in the year 2010 and a quite constant growth 

in the years 2010 & 2012. 

Although the decrease in expenditures in 2011 is low but the decrease was above all Expense.  
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Recommendations:- 

1. The company should use its long-term capital invested in assets more productively in the 

generation of revenue. 

 

2. The company should increase its earnings per share more and more, because this will be very 

good. 

 

3. We recommend the company to improve the shortage & Procurement Policies and try to reduce 

the collection period to enhance the effectiveness of the company due to the lack of Inventory of the 

company. 

4. We recommend the company to minimize the production expenses in order to recover the losses 

of 2011 by Searching for other supplier of raw Materials.  

5. We recommend the company to enhance its Debt dealing with the banks to increase its 

Profitability by the reliance on the external financing sources. 

6. We recommend the company to supplement enough liquidity in order to pay its debts in the range 

that doesn’t exceed 160 days. 

7. We recommend the company to minimize the Selling-prices because of the tough market 

competition in order to attract the customers and satisfy them.     
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